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(702) 487-6727  

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)  
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities 

Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) 
has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes  No �  
 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive 
Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months 
(or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes  No �  
 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer or a non-accelerated filer. See the definitions 
of “large accelerated filer”, “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):  
 

 
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes � No   
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Forward-Looking Statements  
 

This document contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, 
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. All statements other than statements of 
historical fact are “forward-looking statements”, including, but not limited to, any projections of earnings, revenue or other financial items; any 
statements of the plans, strategies and objectives of management for future operations; any statements concerning proposed new services or 
developments; any statements regarding future economic conditions or performance; any statements of belief; and any statements of assumptions 
underlying any of the foregoing.  
 

Forward-looking statements may include the words “may,” “could,” “will,” “estimate,” “intend,” “continue,” “believe,” “expect” or 
“anticipate” or other similar words. These forward-looking statements present our estimates and assumptions only as of the date of this report. 
Except for our ongoing obligation to disclose material information as required by the federal securities laws, we do not intend, and undertake no 
obligation, to update any forward-looking statement.  
 

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in any of our forward-looking statements are reasonable, actual results could differ 
materially from those projected or assumed in any of our forward-looking statements. Our future financial condition and results of operations, as 
well as any forward-looking statements, are subject to change and inherent risks and uncertainties. Some of the key factors impacting these risks 
and uncertainties include, but are not limited to:  
 

 
For a detailed description of these and other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in any 

forward-looking statement, please see the section entitled “Risk Factors”, beginning on page 19 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year 
ended December 31, 2012.  
   

  

  ●  risks related to our ability to collect amounts owed to us by some of our largest customers;  
  ●  our ability to continue to purchase yew cuttings from our various suppliers at relatively stable prices;  
  ●  our dependence on a small number of customers for our yew raw materials, including a related party ;  
  ●  our dependence on a small number of customers for our yew trees for reforestation;  
  ●  our ability to market successfully yew raw materials used in the manufacture of traditional Chinese medicine (“TCM”);  
  ●  industry-wide market factors and regulatory and other developments affecting our operations;  
  ●  our ability to sustain revenues should the Chinese economy slow from its current rate of growth;  
  ●  continued preferential tax treatment for the sale of yew trees and potted yew trees;  

  
●  uncertainties about involvement of the Chinese government in business in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”) 

generally; and  

  ●  any change in the rate of exchange of the Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”) to the U.S. dollar, which could affect currency translations of our 
results of operations, which are earned in RMB but reported in dollars;  

  ●  industry-wide market factors and regulatory and other developments affecting our operations;  
  ●  any impairment of any of our assets;  
  ●  a slowdown in the Chinese banking industry, including the availability of credit; and  
  ●  risks related to changes in accounting interpretations.  

  
  



   
PART I  

 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION  

 
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

   
YEW BIO-PHARM GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  
   

   
See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements  

   

  

    June 30,      December 31,   
    2013      2012    
    (Unaudited)          
ASSETS              
CURRENT ASSETS:              
     Cash    $ 30,021     $ 386,821   
     Accounts receivable      1,767,073       722,598   
     Accounts receivable - related party      1,486,700       284,986   
     Inventories      1,247,219       991,234   
     Prepaid expenses and other assets      24,465       150   
     Prepaid expenses - related parties      47,556       60,245   
                  
         Total Current Assets      4,603,034       2,446,034   
                  
LONG-TERM ASSETS:                  
     Inventories, net of current portion      9,755,424       9,382,164   
     Property and equipment, net      801,397       885,969   
     Land use rights and yew forest assets, net      15,736,290       15,328,318   
                  
         Total Long-term Assets      26,293,111       25,596,451   
                  
         Total Assets    $ 30,896,145     $ 28,042,485   

                  
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY                  
CURRENT LIABILITIES:                  
     Accounts payable    $ 3,996     $ 990   
     Accrued expenses and other payables      187,423       199,098   
     Taxes payable      2,997       5,722   
     Due to related parties      50,387       47,876   
                  
         Total Current Liabilities      244,803       253,686   
                  
         Total Liabilities      244,803       253,686   
                  
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES                  
                  
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:                  
     Preferred stock ($0.001 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued and outstanding at 

June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively)      -      -  
     Common stock ($0.001 par value;  140,000,000 shares authorized;  50,000,000 issued and 

outstanding at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively)      50,000       50,000   
     Additional paid-in capital      10,396,377       10,396,377   
     Retained earnings      15,199,568       13,182,032   
     statutory reserves      2,426,978       2,179,494   
     Accumulated other comprehensive income - foreign currency translation adjustment      2,578,419       1,980,896   
                  
         Total Shareholders' Equity      30,651,342       27,788,799   
                  
         Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity    $ 30,896,145     $ 28,042,485   
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YEW BIO-PHARM GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  
(UNAUDITED)  

   

   
See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements  

   

  

    
For the Three Months Ended  

June 30,      
For the Six Months Ended  

June 30,    
    2013      2012      2013      2012    
REVENUES:                          
     Revenues    $ 1,143,880     $ 1,905,421     $ 2,584,871     $ 3,300,074   
     Revenues - related party      962,486       -      1,320,435       159,692   
                                  
         Total Revenues      2,106,366       1,905,421       3,905,306       3,459,766   
                                  
COST OF REVENUES:                                  
     Cost of revenues      206,310       297,744       701,969       580,548   
     Cost of revenues - related party      299,212       -      382,222       25,224   
                                  
         Total Cost of Revenues      505,522       297,744       1,084,191       605,772   
                                  
GROSS PROFIT      1,600,844       1,607,677       2,821,115       2,853,994   
                                  
OPERATING EXPENSES:                                  
     Selling      6,079       5,350       11,693       11,237   
     General and administrative      271,908       150,062       543,869       363,773   
                                  
         Total Operating Expenses      277,987       155,412       555,562       375,010   
                                  
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS      1,322,857       1,452,265       2,265,553       2,478,984   
                                  
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES):                                  
     Interest income      42       1,509       84       1,588   
     Other income (expense)      (200 )     (361 )     (617 )     (361 ) 
                                  
         Total Other Income (Expenses)      (158 )     1,148       (533 )     1,227   
                                  
NET INCOME    $ 1,322,699     $ 1,453,413     $ 2,265,020     $ 2,480,211   

                                  
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:                                  
     NET INCOME    $ 1,322,699     $ 1,453,413     $ 2,265,020     $ 2,480,211   
                                  
     OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:                                  
         Foreign currency translation adjustment      442,871       21,762       597,523       167,667   
                                  
     COMPREHENSIVE INCOME    $ 1,765,570     $ 1,475,175     $ 2,862,543     $ 2,647,878   

                                  
NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE:                                  
     Basic    $ 0.03     $ 0.03     $ 0.05     $ 0.05   

     Diluted    $ 0.03     $ 0.03     $ 0.05     $ 0.05   

WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING:                            
     Basic      50,000,000       50,000,000       50,000,000       45,563,187   

     Diluted      50,000,000       50,000,000       50,000,000       50,000,000   
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YEW BIO-PHARM GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  
(UNAUDITED)  

   

   
See notes to unaudited consolidated financial statements  

   

  

             
For the Six Months Ended June 

30,    
             2013      2012    
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:                
  Net income    $ 2,265,020     $ 2,480,211   
  Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:                    
    Depreciation        102,954       103,200   
    Amortization of land use rights and yew forest assets         178,817       172,171   
    Loss on disposal of fixed assets         420       -  
  Changes in operating assets and liabilities:                    
    Accounts receivable        (1,019,696 )     (316,181 ) 
    Accounts receivable - related party        (1,184,390 )     -  
    Prepaid expenses and other assets        (24,082 )     (1,739 ) 
    Prepaid expenses - related parties        13,801       (70,625 ) 
    Inventories        (186,105 )     (40,286 ) 
    Accounts payable        2,957       (1,306,617 ) 
    Accrued expenses and other payables        (14,358 )     (40,191 ) 
    Due to related parties        2,448       22,473   
    Taxes payable        (2,824 )     655   
    Advances from customers        -      232,077   
                           
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES        134,962       1,235,148   
                           
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:                    
    Purchase of property and equipment        (3,084 )     (46,305 ) 
    Payments for yew forest assets        (493,878 )     -  
    Deposit on land use right        -      (995,969 ) 
                           
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES        (496,962 )     (1,042,274 ) 
                           
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:                    
    Repayments for related parties advances         -      (236,595 ) 
                           
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES        -      (236,595 ) 
                           
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE ON CASH        5,200       5,258   
                           
NET DECREASE IN CASH        (356,800 )     (38,463 ) 
                           
CASH  - beginning of period        386,821       732,371   
                           
CASH - end of period    $ 30,021     $ 693,908   

                           
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:                  
  Cash paid for:                    
      Interest    $ -    $ -  

      Income taxes    $ -    $ -  

                           
  Non-cash investing and financing activities                     
      Shares issued for refundable common stock subscription    $ -    $ 950,000   
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YEW BIO-PHARM GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S  
June 30, 2013  

 
NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION  
 
The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial 
statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP have been condensed or omitted as permitted by rules and regulations of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The condensed consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2012 was derived from the audited consolidated 
financial statements of Yew Bio-Pharm Group, Inc. (individually “YBP” and collectively with its subsidiaries and operating variable interest 
entity, the “Company”). The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the 
summary of significant accounting policies and notes to consolidated financial statements included in the Company’s annual report on Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31, 2012.  
 
In the opinion of management, all adjustments (which include normal recurring adjustments) necessary to present a fair statement of the financial 
position as of June 30, 2013, and the results of operations and cash flows for the six-month period ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, have been 
made.  
 
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. The Company continually evaluates its estimates, including those related to bad debts, inventories, recovery of long-lived assets, 
income taxes, and the valuation of equity transactions. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other 
assumptions that it believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Any future changes to these estimates and assumptions 
could cause a material change to our reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates under different assumptions or conditions.  
 
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries and variable interest entities (“VIE”) are as follows:  
 

 

  

Name    
Domicile and date of 
incorporation    

Registered 
capital    Effective ownership    Principal activities  

Heilongjiang Jinshangjing 
Bio-Technology 
Development Co., Limited 
(“JSJ”)  

  PRC  
October 29, 2009  

  USD $ 100,000    100%    Holding company  

                  
Yew Bio-Pharm Holdings 
Limited (“Yew Bio-Pharm 
(HK)” )  

  Hong Kong  
November 29, 2010  

  HK$ 10,000    100%    Holding company of JSJ  

                  
Harbin Yew Science and 
Technology Development 
Co., Ltd. (“HDS”)  

  PRC  
August 22, 1996  

  RMB 45,000,000    Contractual 
arrangements  

  Sales of yew tree components for use in 
pharmaceutical industry; sales of yew 
tree seedlings and potted yew trees; and 
the manufacture of yew tree wood 
handicrafts  
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NOTE 2 – PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION  
 
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of YBP, its subsidiaries and operating VIE, in which the Company is the 
primary beneficiary. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated on consolidation.  
 
Pursuant to a restructuring plan intended to ensure compliance with applicable PRC laws and regulations (the “Second Restructure”), on 
November 5, 2010, JSJ entered into a series of contractual arrangements (the “Contractual Arrangements”) with HDS and/or Zhiguo Wang, his 
wife Guifang Qi and Xingming Han (collectively with Mr. Wang and Madame Qi, the “HDS Shareholders”), as described below:  
 

 

   

  

●  Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement . Pursuant to the Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement between JSJ and HDS (the 
“Business Cooperation Agreement”), JSJ has the exclusive right to provide to HDS general business operation services, including advice 
and strategic planning, as well as consulting services related to technology, research and development, human resources, marketing and 
other services deemed necessary (collectively, the “Services”). Under the Business Cooperation Agreement, JSJ has exclusive and 
proprietary rights and interests in all rights, ownership, interests and intellectual properties arising out of or created during the performance 
of the Business Cooperation Agreement, including but not limited to copyrights, patents, patent applications, software and trade secrets. 
HDS shall pay to JSJ a monthly consulting service fee (the “Service Fee”) in RMB that is equal to 100% of the monthly net income of HDS. 
Upon the prior written consent by JSJ, the rate of Service Fee may be adjusted pursuant to the operational needs of HDS. Within 30 days 
after the end of each month, HDS shall (a) deliver to JSJ the management accounts and operating statistics of HDS for such month, 
including the net income of HDS during such month (the “Monthly Net Income”), and (b) pay 80% of such Monthly Net Income to JSJ 
(each such payment, a “Monthly Payment”). Within ninety (90) days after the end of each fiscal year, HDS shall (a) deliver to JSJ financial 
statements of HDS for such fiscal year, which shall be audited and certified by an independent certified public accountant approved by JSJ, 
and (b) pay an amount to JSJ equal to the shortfall, if any, of the aggregate net income of HDS for such fiscal year, as shown in such audited 
financial statements, as compared to the aggregate amount of the Monthly Payments paid by HDS to JSJ in such fiscal year. HDS also 
granted an irrevocable and exclusive option to JSJ to purchase any and all of the assets of HDS, to the extent permitted under PRC law, at 
the lowest price permitted by PRC law. Unless earlier terminated in accordance with the provisions of the Business Cooperation Agreement 
or other agreements separately executed between JSJ and HDS, the Business Cooperation Agreement is for a term of ten years and expires 
on November 5, 2020; however, the term of the Business Cooperation Agreement may be extended if confirmed in writing by JSJ prior to 
the expiration of the term thereof. The period of the extended term shall be determined exclusively by JSJ and HDS shall accept such 
extended term unconditionally. Unless JSJ commits gross negligence, or a fraudulent act, against HDS, HDS shall not terminate the 
Business Cooperation Agreement prior to the expiration of the term, including any extended term. Notwithstanding the foregoing, JSJ shall 
have the right to terminate the Business Cooperation Agreement at any time upon giving 30 days’  prior written notice to HDS.  

●  Exclusive Option Agreement . Under an Exclusive Option Agreement among JSJ, HDS and each HDS Shareholder (individually, an 
“Option Agreement”), the terms of which are substantively identical to each other, each HDS Shareholder has granted JSJ or its designee the 
irrevocable and exclusive right to purchase, to the extent permitted under PRC law, all or any part of the HDS Shareholder’s equity interests 
in HDS (the “Equity Interest Purchase Option”) for RMB 10. If an appraisal is required by PRC laws at the time when and if JSJ exercises 
the Equity Interest Purchase Option, the parties shall negotiate in good faith and, based upon the appraisal, make a necessary adjustment to 
the purchase price so that it complies with any and all then applicable PRC laws. Without the consent of JSJ, the HDS Shareholders shall not 
sell, transfer, mortgage or dispose of their respective shares of HDS stock. Additionally, without the prior consent of JSJ, the HDS 
Shareholders shall not in any manner supplement, change or amend the articles of association and bylaws of HDS, increase or decrease its 
registered capital, change the structure of its registered capital in any other manner, or engage in any transactions that could materially affect 
HDS’ assets, liabilities, rights or operations, including, without limitation, the incurrence or assumption of any indebtedness except incurred 
in the ordinary course of business, execute any major contract over RMB 500,000, sell or purchase any assets or rights, incur of any 
encumbrance on any of its assets or intellectual property rights in favor of a third party or transfer of any agreements relating to its business 
operation to any third party. The term of each Option Agreement is ten years commencing on November 5, 2020 and may be extended at the 
sole election of JSJ.  
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To the extent that the Contractual Arrangements are enforceable under PRC law, as from time to time interpreted by relevant state agencies, they 
constitute the valid and binding obligations of each of the parties to each such agreement.  
 
The Company believes that HDS is considered a VIE under ASC 810 “Consolidation”, because the equity investors in HDS no longer have the 
characteristics of a controlling financial interest, and the Company, through JSJ, is the primary beneficiary of HDS and controls HDS’s 
operations. Accordingly, HDS has been consolidated as a deemed subsidiary into YBP as a reporting company under ASC 810.  
 
As required by ASC 810-10, the Company performs a qualitative assessment to determine whether the Company is the primary beneficiary of 
HDS which is identified as a VIE of the Company. A quality assessment begins with an understanding of the nature of the risks in the entity as 
well as the nature of the entity’s activities including terms of the contracts entered into by the entity, ownership interests issued by the entity and 
the parties involved in the design of the entity. The Company’s assessment on the involvement with HDS reveals that the Company has the 
absolute power to direct the most significant activities that impact the economic performance of HDS. JSJ is obligated to absorb a majority of the 
risk of loss from HDS activities and entitles JSJ to receive a majority of HDS’s expected residual returns. In addition, HDS’s shareholders have 
pledged their equity interest in HDS to JSJ, irrevocably granted JSJ an exclusive option to purchase, to the extent permitted under PRC Law, all 
or part of the equity interests in HDS and agreed to entrust all the rights to exercise their voting power to the person(s) appointed by JSJ. Under 
the accounting guidance, the Company is deemed to be the primary beneficiary of HDS and the results of HDS are consolidated in the 
Company’s consolidated financial statements for financial reporting purposes. Accordingly, as a VIE, HDS’s sales are included in the 
Company’s total sales, its income from operations is consolidated with the Company’s and the Company’s net income includes all of HDS’s net 
income. The Company does not have any non-controlling interest and, accordingly, did not subtract any net income in calculating the net income 
attributable to the Company. Because of the Contractual Arrangements, YBP has a pecuniary interest in HDS that requires consolidation of 
HDS’s financial statements with those of the Company.  
   

  

●  Equity Interest Pledge Agreement .   In order to guarantee HDS’s performance of its obligations under the Business Cooperation Agreement, 
each HDS Shareholder, JSJ and HDS entered into an Equity Interest Pledge Agreement (individually, a “Pledge Agreement”), the terms of 
which are substantially similar to each other. Pursuant to the Pledge Agreement, each HDS Shareholder pledged all of his or her equity 
interest in HDS to JSJ. If HDS or the HDS Shareholders breach their respective contractual obligations and such breach is not remedied to 
the satisfaction of JSJ within 20 days after the giving of notice of breach, JSJ, as pledgee, will be entitled to exercise certain rights, including 
the right to foreclose upon and sell the pledged equity interests. During the term of the Pledge Agreement, the HDS Shareholder shall not 
transfer his or her equity interest in HDS or place or otherwise permit any other security interest of other encumbrance to be placed on such 
equity interest. Upon the full payment of the Service Fee under the Business Cooperation Agreement and upon the termination of HDS’s 
obligations thereunder, the Pledge Agreement shall be terminated.  

●  Power of Attorney . Under the Power of Attorney executed by each HDS Shareholder (each, a “Power of Attorney”), the terms of which are 
substantially similar to each other, JSJ has been granted an exclusive, irrevocable power of attorney to take actions in the place and stead of 
the HDS Shareholders, to act on behalf of the HDS Shareholder as his or her exclusive agent and attorney with respect to all matters 
concerning the HDS Shareholder’s equity interests in HDS, including without limitation, the right to: 1) attend shareholders’ meetings of 
HDS; 2) exercise all the HDS Shareholders’ rights, including voting rights under PRC laws and HDS’s Articles of Association, including 
but not limited to the sale or transfer or pledge or disposition of the HDS Shareholder’s equity interests in HDS in whole or in part; and 3) 
designate and appoint on behalf of the HDS Shareholders the legal representative, executive director, supervisor, manager and other senior 
management of HDS.  
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Additionally, pursuant to ASC 805, as YBP and HDS are under the common control of the HDS Shareholders, the Second Restructure was 
accounted for in a manner similar to a pooling of interests. As a result, the Company’s historical amounts in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements give retrospective effect to the Second Restructure, whereby the assets and liabilities of the Company are reflected at the 
historical carrying values and their operations are presented as if they were consolidated for all periods presented, with the results of the 
Company being consolidated from the date of the Second Transfer Agreement. The accounts of HDS are consolidated in the accompanying 
financial statements.  
 
As of June 30, 2013, JSJ has agreed to waive all management fees to be payable by HDS and the Company expects to waive such management 
fees in the near future due to a need of working capital in HDS to expand HDS’s operations.  
 
The Company is principally engaged in (1) processing and selling yew raw materials used in the manufacture of traditional Chinese medicine 
(“TCM”); ( 2) growing and selling yew tree seedlings and mature trees, including potted miniature yew trees; and (3) manufacturing and selling 
furniture and handicrafts made of yew tree timber. The Company is located in Harbin, Heilongjiang Province, China.  
 
YBP has no direct or indirect legal or equity ownership interest in HDS. However, through the Contractual Arrangements, the stockholders of 
HDS have assigned all their rights as stockholders, including voting rights and disposition rights of their equity interests in HDS to JSJ, our 
indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary. YBP is deemed to be the primary beneficiary of HDS and the financial statements of HDS are consolidated in 
the Company’s consolidated financial statements. At June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the carrying amount and classification of the assets 
and liabilities in the Company’s balance sheets that relate to the Company’s variable interest in the VIE was as follows:  
 

 
The assets and liabilities in the table above are held in HDS, the VIE. The creditors of HDS have legal recourse only to the assets of HDS and do 
not have such recourse to the Company. In addition, HDS’ assets are generally restricted only to pay such liabilities. Thus, the Company’s 
maximum legal exposure to loss related to the VIE is significantly less than the carrying value of the HDS assets due to outstanding 
intercompany liabilities. Restricted net assets of the VIE shall mean that amount of our proportionate share of net assets of HDS (after 
intercompany eliminations) which as of the end of the most recent fiscal year and most recent reporting balance sheet date may not be transferred 
to the parent company by the VIE in the form of loans, advances or cash dividends without the consent of a third party (e.g. lender, regulatory 
agency, foreign government).  
   

  

Assets    
June 30,  

2013      
December 31, 

2012    
Cash    $ 26,149     $ 343,990   
Accounts receivable      1,767,073       722,598   
Accounts receivable – related party      1,486,700       284,986   
Inventories (current and long-term)      11,002,643       10,373,398   
Prepaid expenses and other assets      24,315       -  
Prepaid expenses - related parties      45,940       57,870   
Property and equipment, net      719,813       790,563   
Land use rights and yew forest assets, net      15,736,290       15,328,318   

Total assets of VIE    $ 30,808,923     $ 27,901,723   

Liabilities                  
Accounts payable    $ 3,996     $ 990   
Accrued expenses and other payables      130,643       79,981   
Taxes payable      3,115       6,305   
Due to YBP and JSJ      1,760,445       1,939,720   
Due to related parties      4,412       1,900   

Total liabilities of VIE    $ 1,902,611     $ 2,028,896   
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Reclassifications  
 
Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. These reclassifications have no effect on the 
previously reported financial position, results of operations and cash flows.  
 
NOTE 3 – INVENTORIES  
 
Inventories consisted of raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods-handicrafts, yew seedlings and other trees (consisting of larix, spruce 
and poplar trees). The Company classifies its inventories based on its historical and anticipated levels of sales; any inventory in excess of its 
normal operating cycle of one year is classified as long-term on its consolidated balance sheets. As of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, 
inventories consisted of the following:  
   

 
NOTE 4 – TAXES  
 
(a) Federal Income Tax and Enterprise Income Taxes  
   
The Company is registered in the State of Nevada and is subject to the United States federal income tax at a tax rate of 34%. No provision for 
income taxes in the U.S. has been made as the Company had no U.S. taxable income as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012.  
   
The Company’s subsidiary and VIE, JSJ and HDS, respectively, being incorporated in the PRC, are subject to PRC’s Enterprise Income Tax. 
Pursuant to the PRC Income Tax Laws, Enterprise Income Taxes (“EIT”) is generally imposed at 25%.  
   
The table below summarizes the difference between the U.S. statutory federal tax rate and the Company’s effective tax rate for the six months 
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012:  
 

 

  

    June 30, 2013      December 31, 2012    

    
Current 
portion      

Long-term 
portion      Total      

Current 
portion      

Long-term 
portion      Total    

Raw materials    $ 209,197     $ 2,761,357     $ 2,970,554     $ 284,628     $ 2,734,896     $ 3,019,524   
Work-in-process      52,813       -      52,813       22,523       -      22,523   
Finished goods - handicrafts      175,292       665,510       840,802       153,578       695,426       849,004   
Yew seedlings      806,524       3,346,620       4,153,144       530,505       3,622,991       4,153,496   
Other trees      3,393       2,981,937       2,985,330       -      2,328,851       2,328,851   
Total    $ 1,247,219     $ 9,755,424     $ 11,002,643     $ 991,234     $ 9,382,164     $ 10,373,398   

    Six Months Ended June 30,    
    2013      2012    
U.S. federal income tax rate      34 %     34 % 
Foreign income not recognized in the U.S.      (34 %)     (34 %) 
PRC EIT rate      25 %     25 % 
PRC tax exemption and reduction      (25 %)     (25 %) 
Total provision for income taxes      -      -  
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Income before income tax expenses of $1,322,699 and $1,453,413 for the three months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and 
$2,265,020 and $2,480,211 for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, was attributed to subsidiaries with operations in 
China. HDS and JSJ recorded no income tax expense for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 due to the fact that HDS has been granted 
a tax exemption and has loss carry-forwards from previous years to offset income tax liability generated for handicraft sales and JSJ has been 
incurring net losses.  
 
The combined effects of the income tax expense exemptions and tax reductions available to the Company for the three and six months ended 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:  
 

 
The deferred income tax assets or liabilities calculated pursuant to the EIT is not material due to the fact that the Company has been granted EIT 
exemption with respect to its yew raw materials and yew tree segments and is only subject to tax under the EIT for its handicrafts segment, 
which only represents a small portion of net revenues.  
 
The Company has incurred net operating loss for income tax purposes for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. The net 
operating loss carry-forwards for U.S. income tax purposes amounted to $1,163,539 and $962,787 at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, 
respectively, which may be available to reduce future years’ taxable income. These carry forwards will expire, if not utilized, through 2033. 
Management believes that the realization of the benefits arising from this loss appear to be uncertain due to the Company’s limited operating 
history and continuing losses for United States income tax purposes. Accordingly, the Company has provided a 100% valuation allowance on the 
deferred tax asset to reduce the asset to zero at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012. The valuation allowance at June 30, 2013 and December 
31, 2012 was $395,603 and $327,348, respectively. The net change in the valuation allowance was an increase of $19,989 and $18,424 during 
the three months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The net change in the valuation allowance was an increase of $68,255 and $42,770 
during the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and management will review this valuation allowance periodically and make 
adjustments as necessary.  
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are provided for significant income and expense items recognized in different years for income tax and 
financial reporting purposes. Temporary differences, which give rise to a net deferred tax asset for the Company as of June 30, 2013 and 
December 31, 2012, are as follows:  
 

 
For U.S. income tax purposes, the Company has cumulative undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiary and VIE of approximately $18.6 million 
and $16.4 million as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively, which are included in consolidated retained earnings and will 
continue to be indefinitely reinvested in overseas operations. Accordingly, no provision has been made for U.S. deferred taxes related to future 
repatriation of these earnings, nor is it practicable to estimate the amount of income taxes that would have to be provided if we concluded that 
such earnings will be remitted to the U.S. in the future.  
 

  

    Three Months Ended June 30,      Six Months Ended June 30,    
    2013      2012      2013      2012    
Tax exemption effect    $ 353,167     $ 370,819     $ 622,111     $ 651,981   
Tax reduction due to loss carry-forward      -      6,081       -      1,665   
Loss not subject to income tax      (7,795 )     -      (5,669 )     (2,145 ) 

Basic net income per share effect    $ (0.01 )   $ (0.01 )   $ (0.01 )   $ (0.01 ) 

Diluted net income per share effect    $ (0.01 )   $ (0.01 )   $ (0.01 )   $ (0.01 ) 

    
June 30,  

2013      
December 31, 

2012    
U.S. tax benefit of net operating loss carry forward    $ 395,603     $ 327,348   
Valuation allowance      (395,603 )     (327,348 ) 
Net deferred tax assets    $ -    $ -  
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The Company did not have uncertainty tax positions or events leading to uncertainty tax position within the next 12 months. The Company’s 
2010, 2011 and 2012 U.S. corporation income tax returns are subject to Internal Revenue Service examination. The Company’s 2009, 2010, 
2011 and 2012 China corporate income tax returns are subject to China State Administration of Taxation examination.  
 
(b) Value Added Taxes (“VAT”)  
 
The applicable VAT tax rate is 13% for agricultural products and 17% for handicrafts sold in the PRC. In accordance with VAT regulations in 
the PRC, the Company is exempt from paying VAT on its yew raw materials and yew trees sales as an agricultural corps cultivating company up 
to December 31, 2016. VAT payable in the PRC is charged on an aggregated basis at the applicable rate on the full price collected for the goods 
sold or taxable services provided and less any deductible VAT already paid by the taxpayer on purchases of goods in the same fiscal year.  
 
NOTE 5 – STOCKHOLDERS’  EQUITY  
 
Stock Options  
 
On December 13, 2012, the Company’s shareholders approved the issuance of stock purchase options (“Founders’ Options”) to the Company’s 
directors/officers (collectively, the “Founders”) and the Company issued the Founders’ Options to the Founders following such approval. The 
terms of each Founder’s Option are identical to each other except for the name of the optionee and the number of shares of the Company’s 
common stock subject to each Founder’s Option. The principal terms of the Founders’ Options include the following:  
 

 
The number of shares of the Company’s common stock subject to each Founder’s Option is as follows:  
 

 
There were no stock warrants issued, terminated/forfeited and exercised during the six months ended June 30, 2013.  
 

  

●  Each Founder’s Option is fully vested upon issuance;  
●  Each Founder’s Option is exercisable for a period of five years from the date of issuance;  
●  Each Founder’s Option is exercisable at $0.22 per share; and  
●  Each Founder’s Option has a cashless exercise feature, pursuant to which, at the optionee’s election, he or she may choose to deliver 

previously-owned shares of YBP common stock in payment of the exercise price or not pay the exercise price of the Founder’s Option and 
receive instead a reduced number of shares of YBP common stock reflecting the value of the number of shares of YBP common stock equal 
to the difference, if any, between the aggregate fair market value of the shares issuable upon exercise of the Founder’s Option and the 
exercise price of the Founder’s Option.  

Name of Optionee    

Number of 
Shares  

Subject to 
Founder's 

Option    
Zhiguo Wang      20,103,475   
Guifang Qi      2,488,737   
Xingming Han      213,300   
Total      22,805,512   
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The following table summarizes the shares of the Company's common stock issuable upon exercise of options outstanding at June 30, 2013:  
 

 
The intrinsic value of options at June 30, 2013 is zero since the estimated market value of the Company’s common stock as of June 30, 2013 is 
lower than the exercise price of the options.  
 
NOTE 6 – EARNINGS PER SHARE  
 
ASC 260 “ Earnings per Share ,” requires dual presentation of basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) with a reconciliation of the 
numerator and denominator of the basic EPS computation to the numerator and denominator of the diluted EPS computation. Basic EPS 
excludes dilution. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were 
exercised or converted into common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that then shared in the earnings of the entity.  
 
Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of shares of 
common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted income per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of 
shares of common stock, common stock equivalents and potentially dilutive securities outstanding during each period. Potentially dilutive 
common shares consist of common shares issuable upon the confirmation of subscriptions for shares and common stock options (using the 
treasury stock method).  
 
The following table presents a reconciliation of basic and diluted net income per share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and 
2012:  
 

   

  

Stock Options Outstanding    Stock Options Exercisable  

  
Range of Exercise 

Price    
Number Outstanding at 

June 30, 2013    

Weighted Average 
Remaining Contractual 

Life (Years)      
Weighted Average 

Exercise Price    

Number  
Exercisable at  
June 30, 2013      

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price  

$ 0.22   22,805,512   4.45    $ 0.22   22,805,512   $ 0.22 

    
Three Months Ended  

June 30,      
Six Months Ended  

June 30,    
    2013      2012      2013      2012    
Net income available to common stockholders for basic and diluted net 
income per share of common stock    $ 1,322,699     $ 1,453,413     $ 2,265,020     $ 2,480,211   

Weighted average common stock outstanding – basic      50,000,000       50,000,000       50,000,000       45,563,187   
Effect of dilutive securities:                                  
  Subscribed common shares issuable      -      -      -      4,436,813   
  Stock options issued to directors/officers      -      -      -      -  
Weighted average common stock outstanding – diluted      50,000,000       50,000,000       50,000,000       50,000,000   

Net income per common share – basic    $ 0.03     $ 0.03     $ 0.05     $ 0.05   

Net income per common share – diluted    $ 0.03     $ 0.03     $ 0.05     $ 0.05   
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The Company's aggregate common stock equivalents at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 included the following:  
 

 
NOTE 7 – CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK AND MAJOR CU STOMERS  
 
Customers  
 
For the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, customers accounting for 10% or more of the Company’s revenue were as follows:  
 

 
The two largest customers accounted for 73% of the Company’s total outstanding accounts receivable at June 30, 2013, of which Yew 
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., (“Yew Pharmaceutical”), a related party, accounted for 45.7%. Three customers accounted for 100% of the 
Company’s total outstanding accounts receivable at December 31, 2012, of which Yew Pharmaceutical accounted for 28.3%.  
 
Suppliers  
 
For the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, suppliers accounting for 10% or more of the Company’s purchase were as follows:  
 

 
For the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, two suppliers accounted for 100% of the Company’s purchases and the Company had $49,611 
payable with these suppliers at June 30, 2013.  
 
For the three and six months ended June 30, 2012, the Company did not make material purchases and a third party supplier accounted for 100% 
of the Company’s accounts payable at December 31, 2012.  
   

  

    
June 30,  

2013      
December 31, 

2012    
Stock options      22,805,512       22,805,512   
     Total      22,805,512       22,805,512   

    Three Months Ended June 30,      Six Months Ended June 30,    
Customer    2013      2012      2013      2012    
A      *       *       *       18 % 
B      *       28 %     *       15 % 
C      *       11 %     *       14 % 
D      *       *       *       14 % 
E      *       23 %     *       13 % 
F      *       21 %     *       12 % 
G (Yew Pharmaceutical, a related party)      46 %     *       34 %     *   
H      24 %     *       33 %     *   

∗   Less than 10%  

    Three Months Ended June 30,      Six Months Ended June 30,    
Customer    2013      2012      2013      2012    
A      62 %     *       62 %     *   
B      38 %     *       38 %     *   

∗   Less than 10%  
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NOTE 8 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  
 
The Company conducted transactions with certain of the Company’s officers and directors, as well as with the following related parties:  
 

 
Cooperation and Development Agreement and Revenues from Related Party  
 
On January 9, 2010, the Company entered into a Cooperation and Development Agreement (the “Development Agreement”) with Yew 
Pharmaceutical. Pursuant to the Development Agreement, for a period of ten years expiring on January 9, 2020, the Company shall supply 
cultivated yew raw materials to Yew Pharmaceutical, which will be used by Yew Pharmaceutical to make traditional Chinese medicines and 
other pharmaceutical products, at a price of RMB 1,000,000 (approximately $160,000) per metric ton.  
 
For the three months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, sales to Yew Pharmaceutical under the Development Agreement amounted to $962,486 and 
$0, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, sales to Yew Pharmaceutical under the Development Agreement amounted 
to $1,320,435 and $158,089, respectively. Additionally, for the three months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company did not record any 
revenue from the sale of yew handicrafts to Yew Pharmaceutical. For the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company recorded 
revenues from the sale of yew handicrafts to Yew Pharmaceutical of $0 and $1,603, respectively.  In summary, for the three and six months 
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company recorded revenues from the following related party:  
 

 
At June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Company had accounts receivable from Yew Pharmaceutical of $1,486,700 and $284,986, 
respectively, which was included in accounts receivable–related party on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  
 
Purchases  
 
For the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company did not make any material purchases from its related party companies. 
   

  

Company    Ownership  
Heilongjiang Zishan Technology Stock Co., Ltd. 
(“ZTC”)  

  

18% owned by Heilongjiang Hongdoushan Ecology Forest Stock Co., Ltd., 39% owned by 
Zhiguo Wang, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, 31% owned by Guifang Qi, the wife 
of Mr. Wang and Director of the Company, and 12% owned by third parties.  

Heilongjiang Yew Pharmaceuticals, Co., Ltd. 
(“Yew Pharmaceutical” )    

95% owned by Heilongjiang Hongdoushan Ecology Forest Stock Co., Ltd., and 5% owned 
by Madame Qi.  

Shanghai Kairun Bio-Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 
(“Kairun” )    

60% owned by Heilongjiang Zishan Technology Co., Ltd., 20% owned by Heilongjiang 
Hongdoushan Ecology Forest Stock Co., Ltd., and 20% owned by Mr. Wang.  

Heilongjiang Hongdoushan Ecology Forest Stock 
Co., Ltd. (“HEFS”)    

63% owned by Mr. Wang, 34% owned by Madame Qi, and 3% owned by third parties.  

    Three Months Ended June 30,      Six Months Ended June 30,    
Name of related party    2013      2012      2013      2012    
Yew Pharmaceutical    $ 962,486     $ -    $ 1,320,435     $ 159,692   
Total    $ 962,486     $ -    $ 1,320,435     $ 159,692   
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Operating leases  
 
On March 25, 2005, the Company entered into an Agreement for the Lease of Seedling Land with ZTC (the “ZTC Lease”). Pursuant to the ZTC 
Lease, the Company leases 361 mu (approximately 60 acres) of land from ZTC for a period of 30 years, expiring on March 24, 2035. Annual 
payments under the ZTC Lease are RMB 162,450 (approximately $26,000). The payment for the first five years of the ZTC Lease was due prior 
to December 31, 2010 and beginning in 2011, the Company is required to make full payment for the land use rights in advance for each 
subsequent five-year period. For the three months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, rent expense related to the ZTC Lease amounted to $6,539 and 
$6,415, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, rent expense related to the ZTC Lease amounted to $13,000 and 
$12,841, respectively. At June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, prepaid rent to ZTC amounted to $45,940 and $57,870, respectively, which 
was included in prepaid expenses–related parties on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  
 
On December 3, 2008, the Company entered into a lease for retail space in Harbin with Madame Qi (the “Store Lease”). Pursuant to the Store 
Lease, no payment was due for the first year and an annual payment of RMB 12,000 (approximately $2,000) is due for each of the second and 
third years thereof. The term of the Store Lease is three years and expired on December 3, 2011. On November 15, 2011, the Company renewed 
the Store Lease. Pursuant to the renewed Store Lease, the annual rent is RMB 15,600 (approximately $2,500) and the annual payment is due by 
May 30 of each year. The term of the renewed Store Lease is 3 years and expires on December 1, 2014. For the three months ended June 30, 
2013 and 2012, rent expense related to the Store Lease amounted to $628 and $616, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 
2012, rent expense related to the Store Lease amounted to $1,248 and $1,233, respectively. Since December 2012, the premises subject to the 
Store Lease have been used as warehouse and exhibition space rather than retail space.  
 
On January 1, 2010, the Company entered into a lease for office space with Mr. Wang (the “Office Lease”). Pursuant to the Office Lease, annual 
payments of RMB 15,000 (approximately $2,400) are due for each year of the term. The term of the Office Lease is 15 years and expires on 
December 31, 2025. For the three months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, rent expense related to the Office Lease amounted $603 and $593, 
respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, rent expense related to the Office Lease amounted $1,200 and $1,186, 
respectively.  
 
On July 1, 2012, JSJ entered into a lease for office space with Mr. Wang (the “JSJ Lease”). Pursuant to the JSJ Lease, JSJ leases approximately 
320 square feet of office space from Mr. Wang in Harbin. Rent under the JSJ Lease is RMB 10,000 (approximately $1,600) annually. The term 
of the JSJ Lease is three years and expires on June 30, 2015. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, rent expense related to the JSJ 
Lease amounted to $402 and $800, respectively. At June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, prepaid rent to Mr. Wang amounted to $1,616 and 
$2,375, respectively, which was included in prepaid expenses-related parties on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  
 
The principal executive offices of YBP are located at 294 Powerbilt Avenue, Las Vegas, Nevada, a property owned by the Company’s President, 
Zhiguo Wang, which he provides rent-free to the Company. However, the Company pays utilities, property insurance, real estate tax, association 
dues and certain other expenses on the property to third parties, which, in the three months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, aggregated 
approximately $3,842 and $1,251, respectively and in the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, aggregated approximately $7,350 and 
$5,070, respectively. The space provided by Mr. Wang to use as principal executive offices is less than 500 square feet and a significant portion 
of the property is used by Mr. Wang for his personal use. The Company estimates that the market value of a gross and full service lease for an 
equivalent executive office rent in the same geographic area is approximately $800 to $1,000 per month. The landlord of a gross and full service 
lease typically would be responsible for paying utilities, property tax and insurance and other expenses associated with maintaining the property. 
However, the Company pays these expenses, as well as association dues, on behalf of Mr. Wang, to third parties in lieu of making rent 
payments. The Company believes that the difference between the annual market rent for the space used by the Company and the amount of 
$3,842 and $1,251 for the three months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and the amount of $7,350 and $5,070 for the six months 
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, that the Company paid to third parties for expenses related to the property in the three and six 
months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, is not material.  
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At June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the total prepaid rent for the above operating leases with related parties amounted to $47,556 and 
$60,245, respectively, which amount was included in prepaid expenses-related parties on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  
   
Due to related parties  
 
Certain of the Company’s officers and directors, from time to time, have provided advances to the Company for working capital purpose. These 
advances are short-term in nature, non-interest bearing, unsecured and payable on demand. The due to related parties amount at June 30, 2013 
and December 31, 2012 was as follows:  
 

 
Research and Development Agreement  
 
The Company entered into a Technology Development Service Agreement dated January 1, 2010 (the “Technology Agreement”) with Kairun. 
The term of the Technology Agreement was initially two years. Under the Technology Agreement, Kairun provides the Company with testing 
and technologies regarding utilization of yew trees to extract taxol and develop higher concentration of taxol in the yew trees the Company grow 
and cultivate. For these services, the Company agreed to pay Kairun RMB 200,000 (approximately $32,000) after the technologies developed by 
Kairun are tested and approved by the Company. The Company will retain all intellectual property rights in connection with the technologies 
developed by Kairun. Kairun may not provide similar services to any other party without the Company’s prior written consent. In February 
2012, the Company entered into a supplemental agreement with Kairun, extending the term of the Technology Agreement indefinitely until 
project results specified in the original Technology Agreement have been achieved. Kairun is owned directly and indirectly primarily by Mr. 
Wang and Madame Qi. As of June 30, 2013, Kairun has not yet completed the services provided for in the Technology Agreement and, 
therefore, no payment was made to Kairun.  
 
NOTE 9 – STATUTORY RESERVES  
 
The Company is required to make appropriations to reserve funds, comprising the statutory surplus reserve and discretionary surplus reserve, 
based on after-tax net income determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles of the PRC (“PRC GAAP”). 
Appropriation to the statutory surplus reserve is required to be at least 10% of the after tax net income determined in accordance with PRC 
GAAP until the reserve is equal to 50% of the entities’ registered capital. Appropriations to the discretionary surplus reserve are made at the 
discretion of the Board of Directors.  
 
The statutory surplus reserve fund is non-distributable other than during liquidation and can be used to fund previous years’ losses, if any, and 
may be utilized for business expansion or converted into share capital by issuing new shares to existing shareholders in proportion to their 
shareholding or by increasing the par value of the shares currently held by them, provided that the remaining reserve balance after such issue is 
not less than 25% of the registered capital. For the three months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company appropriated to the statutory 
surplus reserve in the amount of $138,524 and $148,686, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company 
appropriated to the statutory surplus reserve in the amount of $247,484 and $261,458, respectively. The accumulated balance of the statutory 
reserve of the Company as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 was $2,426,978 and $2,179,494, respectively.  
   

  

Name of related parties    
June 30,  

2013      
December 31, 

2012    
Zhiguo Wang    $ 47,187     $ 45,976   
Guifang Qi      3,200       1,900   
Total    $ 50,387     $ 47,876   
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NOTE 10 – SEGMENT INFORMATION  
 
ASC 280 requires use of the “management approach” model for segment reporting. The management approach model is based on the way a 
company’s management organizes segments within the company for making operating decisions and assessing performance. Reportable 
segments are based on products and services, geography, legal structure, management structure, or any other manner in which management 
disaggregates a company.  
 
During the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company operated in three reportable business segments: (1) the TCM raw 
materials segment, consisting of the production and sale of yew raw materials used in the manufacture of TCM; (2) the yew tree segment, 
consisting of the growth and sale of yew tree seedlings and mature trees, including potted miniature yew trees; and (3) the handicrafts segment, 
consisting of the manufacture and sale of handicrafts and furniture made of yew timber. The Company’s reportable segments are strategic 
business units that offer different products. They are managed separately based on the fundamental differences in their operations. All of the 
Company’s operations are conducted in the PRC.  
 
Information with respect to these reportable business segments for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was as follows:  
 

   

  

    Three Months Ended June 30,      Six Months Ended June 30,    
    2013      2012      2013      2012    
Revenues:                          
   TCM raw materials    $ 1,270,330     $ 1,225,360     $ 2,166,491     $ 1,966,643   
   Yew trees      796,653       673,565       1,653,607       1,457,088   
   Handicrafts      39,383       6,496       85,208       36,035   
      2,106,366       1,905,421       3,905,306       3,459,766   
Cost of revenues:                                  
   TCM raw materials      415,091       176,781       615,051       288,082   
   Yew trees      44,991       118,220       405,678       299,015   
   Handicrafts      45,440       2,743       63,462       18,675   
      505,522       297,744       1,084,191       605,772   
Depreciation and amortization                                  
   TCM raw materials      89,573       84,399       178,817       168,823   
   Yew trees      8,665       18,774       17,226       27,065   
   Handicrafts      7,811       8,045       15,563       16,104   
   Other      30,204       27,505       70,165       63,379   
      136,253       138,723       281,771       275,371   
                                  
Net income (loss)                                  
   TCM raw materials      855,239       1,048,579       1,551,440       1,678,561   
   Yew trees      751,662       555,345       1,247,929       1,158,073   
   Handicrafts      (6,057 )     3,753       21,746       17,360   
   Other      (278,145 )     (154,264 )     (556,095 )     (373,783 ) 
    $ 1,322,699     $ 1,453,413     $ 2,265,020     $ 2,480,211   
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Information with respect to identifiable long-lived assets, net, as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 was as follows:  
   

 
Information with respect to expenditures for segment assets for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was as follows:  
   

 
The Company does not allocate any selling, general and administrative expenses, other income/expenses to its reportable segments because these 
activities are managed at a corporate level. In addition, the specified amounts for interest expense and income tax expense are not included in the 
measure of segment profit or loss reviewed by the chief operating decision maker and these specified amounts are not regularly provided to the 
chief operating decision maker. Therefore, the Company has not disclosed interest expense and income tax expense for each reportable segment.  
 
Asset information by reportable segment is not reported to or reviewed by the chief operating decision maker and, therefore, the Company has 
not disclosed asset information for each reportable segment. The Company’s operations are located in the PRC. All revenues are derived from 
customers in the PRC. All of the Company’s operating assets are located in the PRC.  
 
NOTE 11 – RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS  
 
In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-05 “Parent’s Accounting for the Cumulative Translation Adjustment upon Derecognition of Certain 
Subsidiaries or Groups of Assets within a Foreign Entity or of an Investment in a Foreign Entity.”   ASU 2013-05 addresses the accounting for 
the cumulative translation adjustment when a parent either sells part or all of its investment in a foreign entity or no longer holds a controlling 
financial interest in a subsidiary or group of assets that is a nonprofit activity or a business within a foreign entity. For public entities, the ASU is 
effective prospectively for fiscal years, and interim periods, within those years, beginning after December 15, 2013. Early adoption is permitted. 
The adoption of ASU 2013-05 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.  
   

  

    
June 30,  

2013      
December 31, 

2012    
TCM raw materials    $ 15,737,211     $ 14,983,045   
Yew trees      3,726,206       4,357,203   
Handicrafts      774,032       817,917   
Other      6,055,662       5,438,286   
    $ 26,293,111     $ 25,596,451   

    Six Months Ended June 30,    
    2013      2012    
TCM raw materials    $ 493,878     $ -  
Yew trees      -      -  
Handicrafts      -      -  
Other      3,084       46,305   
    $ 496,962     $ 46,305   
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In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-11, “ Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a 
Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists ”. These amendments provide that an unrecognized tax benefit, or a portion thereof, 
should be presented in the financial statements as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a 
tax credit carryforward, except to the extent that a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward is not available 
at the reporting date to settle any additional income taxes that would result from disallowance of a tax position, or the tax law does not require 
the entity to use, and the entity does not intend to use, the deferred tax asset for such purpose, then the unrecognized tax benefit should be 
presented as a liability.  For public entities, the amendments are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after 
December 15, 2013. The adoption of ASU 2013-11 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements.  
 
Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by FASB that do not require adoption until a future date are not expected to have a 
material impact on the consolidated financial statements upon adoption.  
 
NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS  
 
The Company has evaluated all other subsequent events through August 14, 2013, the date these consolidated financial statements were issued, 
and determined that there were no other subsequent events or transactions that require recognition or disclosures in the financial statements.  
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The following discussion of our consolidated results of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, and cash 

flows for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, and consolidated financial conditions as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 
should be read in conjunction with our unaudited consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this document.  
 
Overview  
 

We are a major grower and seller of yew trees and manufacturer of products made from yew trees, including potted yew trees for 
display in homes and offices, and handicrafts. We also sell branches and leaves of yew trees for the manufacture of TCM containing taxol, which 
TCM has been approved in the PRC for use as a secondary treatment of certain cancers, meaning it must be administered in combination with 
other pharmaceutical drugs. The yew industry is highly regulated in the PRC because the Northeast yew tree is considered an endangered 
species.  
   

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, we operated in three reportable business segments: (1) the TCM raw 
materials segment, consisting of the production and sale of yew raw materials used in the manufacture of TCM; (2) the yew tree segment, 
consisting of the growth and sale of yew tree seedlings and mature trees, including potted miniature yew trees; and (3) the handicrafts segment, 
consisting of the manufacture and sale of furniture and handicrafts made of yew timber. Our reportable segments are strategic business units that 
offer different products. They are managed separately based on the fundamental differences in their operations. All of our operations are 
conducted in the PRC. We are located in Harbin, Heilongjiang Province, China.  
 

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, revenue by segment as a percentage of consolidated revenues is summarized as 
follows:  
 

 
For the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, revenue by segment as a percentage of consolidated revenues is summarized by third 

party and related party revenues as follows:  
 

 

  

ITEM 2.  MANAGEMENT ’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS  

    Three Months Ended June 30,      Six Months Ended June 30,    
    2013      2012      2013      2012    
TCM raw materials      60.3 %     64.3 %     55.5 %     56.8 % 
Yew trees      37.8 %     35.3 %     42.3 %     42.1 % 
Handicrafts      1.9 %     0.4 %     2.2 %     1.1 % 
Total      100.0 %     100.0 %     100.0 %     100.0 % 

    Three Months Ended June 30,      Six Months Ended June 30,    
    2013      2012      2013      2012    
TCM raw materials - Total      60.3 %     64.3 %     55.5 %     56.8 % 
   TCM raw materials – third parties      14.6 %     59.7 %     21.7 %     52.2 % 
   TCM raw materials – related party      45.7 %     4.6 %     33.8 %     4.6 % 
                                  
Handicrafts - Total      1.9 %     0.4 %     2.2 %     1.1 % 
   Handicrafts– third parties      1.9 %     0.3 %     2.2 %     1.0 % 
   Handicrafts – related party      -      0.1 %     -      0.1 % 
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All of our revenues were generated by HDS and in the PRC. Other than expenses (approximately $201,000 and $126,000 for the six 

months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively) incurred primarily related to meeting its reporting requirements in the U.S., YBP has no 
other significant business operations. At June 30, 2013, YBP has approximately $1,000 in cash and holds the 100% equity interests in its 
subsidiaries Yew HK and JSJ. Yew HK itself has no business operations or assets other than holding of equity interests in JSJ. JSJ has no 
business operations and assets with a book value of approximately $13,000, including approximately $3,000 in cash at June 30, 2013. JSJ also 
holds the VIE interests in HDS through the contractual arrangements (the “Contractual Arrangements”) described in Note 2 of Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements. In the event that we are unable to enforce the Contractual Agreements, we may not be able to exert effective 
control over HDS, and our ability to conduct our business may be materially and adversely affected. If the applicable PRC authorities invalidate 
our Contractual Agreements for any violation of PRC laws, rules and regulations, we would lose control of the VIE resulting in its 
deconsolidation in financial reporting and severe loss in our market valuation.  
   
Results of Operations  
 

The following tables set forth key components of our results of operations for the periods indicated, in dollars, and key components of 
our revenue for the periods indicated, in dollars. The discussion following the table is based on these results.  
 

   

  

    Three Months Ended June 30,      Six Months Ended June 30,    
    2013      2012      2013      2012    
Revenues - third parties    $ 1,143,880     $ 1,905,421     $ 2,584,871     $ 3,300,074   
Revenues - related party      962,486       -      1,320,435       159,692   
    Total revenues      2,106,366       1,905,421       3,905,306       3,459,766   
Cost of revenues - third parties      206,310       297,744       701,969       580,548   
Cost of revenues - related party      299,212       -      382,222       25,224   
    Total cost of revenues      505,522       297,744       1,084,191       605,772   
Gross profit      1,600,844       1,607,677       2,821,115       2,853,994   
Operating expenses      277,987       155,412       555,562       375,010   
Income from operations      1,322,857       1,452,265       2,265,553       2,478,984   
Other income (expenses)      (158 )     1,148       (533 )     1,227   
Net income      1,322,699       1,453,413       2,265,020       2,480,211   
Other comprehensive income:                                  
Foreign currency translation adjustment      442,871       21,762       597,523       167,667   
Comprehensive income    $ 1,765,570     $ 1,475,175     $ 2,862,543     $ 2,647,878   
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Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2013 Compared to Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2012  
 
Revenues  
 

For the three months ended June 30, 2013, we had total revenues of $2,106,366, as compared to $1,905,421 for the three months ended 
June 30, 2012, an increase of $200,945 or 10.5%. For the six months ended June 30, 2013, we had total revenues of $3,905,306, as compared to 
$3,459,766 for the six months ended June 30, 2012, an increase of $445,540 or 12.9%. As more fully described in segment financial data below, 
the increase in total revenue was attributable to an increase in revenues from all three of our business segments. Total revenue is summarized as 
follows:  

   

   

   
For the three months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, we had revenue from the sale of TCM raw materials of $962,486 and $0, 

respectively, from Yew Pharmaceutical, a related party, an increase of $962,486. For the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, we had 
revenue from the sale of TCM raw materials of $1,320,435 and $158,089, respectively, to Yew Pharmaceutical, an increase of $1,162,346. 
Revenue generated from Yew Pharmaceutical, a related party, increased during the three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2013 because 
Yew Pharmaceutical needed to replenish its inventory of yew raw materials in connection with its manufacture of Zi Shan. The sale of TCM raw 
materials to third party customers decreased as our customers indicated to us that they had sufficient inventory from purchases of yew raw 
materials in prior periods.  
 

Yew Pharmaceutical is our single largest customer. For the three months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, revenue from sales to Yew 
Pharmaceutical amounted to $962,486, or 45.7%, of consolidated revenue and $-0-, or -0-%, of consolidated revenue, respectively.  For the six 
months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, revenue from sales to Yew Pharmaceutical amounted to $1,320,435, or 33.8%, of consolidated revenues 
and $159,692, or 4.6%, of consolidated revenue, respectively.  We expect that, as a percentage of revenue, sales of TCM raw materials will 
increase to third party customers and decrease to Yew Pharmaceutical during the remainder of 2013.  
 

Revenue from TCM raw materials and the allocation of sales between related and third parties may fluctuate from period to period 
depending upon the then current needs of our third-party customers and Yew Pharmaceutical. Because yew raw materials is our largest business 
segment, any fluctuation in revenue from TCM raw materials may have a significant impact on net income in such periods. Currently, we are 
largely dependent on Yew Pharmaceutical and a small number of larger, third party customers of TCM raw materials, although we are 
attempting to expand our sales and marketing efforts to new customers as well. We do not expect sales of TCM raw materials to Yew 
Pharmaceutical to recommence until the fourth quarter of 2013, because of the cyclical nature of Yew Pharmaceutical’s purchase requirements.  
 

We currently have significant accounts receivable from Yew Pharmaceutical and certain of our third party customers of TCM raw 
materials. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” below.  
 
Cost of Revenues  
 

Our cost of revenues principally consists of the cost of raw materials such as wood plates and yews, amortization of land use rights and 
yew forest assets, labor, utilities, manufacturing costs, manufacturing related depreciation, machinery maintenance costs, purchasing and 
receiving costs, inspection costs, and other fixed costs.  
   

  

    Three Months Ended June 30,            Percentage    
    2013      2012      Increase      Change    
TCM raw materials    $ 1,270,330     $ 1,225,360     $ 44,970       3.7 % 
Yew trees      796,653       673,565       123,088       18.3 % 
Handicrafts      39,383       6,496       32,887       506.3 % 
Total    $ 2,106,366     $ 1,905,421     $ 200,945       10.5 % 

    Six Months Ended June 30,            Percentage    
    2013      2012      Increase      Change    
TCM raw materials    $ 2,166,491     $ 1,966,643     $ 199,848       10.2 % 
Yew trees      1,653,607       1,457,088       196,519       13.5 % 
Handicrafts      85,208       36,035       49,173       136.5 % 
Total    $ 3,905,306     $ 3,459,766     $ 445,540       12.9 % 
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As more fully described in segment information below:  

 

 
               Cost of revenues by product categories was as follows:  
   

   

 
Gross Profit  
 

For the three months ended June 30, 2013, gross profit was $1,600,844 as compared to $1,607,677 for the three months ended June 30, 
2012, representing gross margins of 76.0% and 84.4%, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2013, gross profit was $2,821,115 as 
compared to $2,853,994 for the six months ended June 30, 2012, representing gross margins of 72.2% and 82.5%, respectively. The decrease in 
our overall gross profit margin for the three months ended June 30, 2013 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2012 was primarily 
attributable to a decrease in gross profit margin in TCM raw materials and handicrafts segments, offset by an increase in gross profit margin in 
yew trees segment. The decrease in our overall gross profit margin for the six months ended June 30, 2013 as compared to the six months ended 
June 30, 2012 was primarily a result of a decrease in gross profit margin in all three of our business segments.  
 

Gross profit margins by product categories were as follows:  
 

   

  

●       For the three months ended June 30, 2013, cost of revenues amounted to $505,522 as compared to $297,744 for the three 
months ended June 30, 2012, an increase of $207,778 or 69.8%.  

●       For the six months ended June 30, 2013, cost of revenues amounted to $1,084,191 as compared to $605,772 for the six months 
ended June 30, 2012, an increase of $478,419 or 79.0%.  

●       For the three months ended June 30, 2013, cost of revenues accounted for 24.0% of total revenues compared to 15.6% of total 
revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2012.  

●       For the six months ended June 30, 2013, cost of revenues accounted for 27.8% of total revenues compared to 17.5% of total 
revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2012.  

    Three Months Ended June 30,      Increase      Percentage    
    2013      2012      (Decrease)      Change    
TCM raw materials    $ 415,091     $ 176,781     $ 238,310       134.8 % 
Yew trees      44,991       118,220       (73,229 )     (61.9 )% 
Handicrafts      45,440       2,743       42,697       1,556.6 % 
Total    $ 505,522     $ 297,744     $ 207,778       69.8 % 

    Six Months Ended June 30,            Percentage   
    2013      2012      Increase       Change    
TCM raw materials    $ 615,051     $ 288,082     $ 326,969       113.5 % 
Yew trees      405,678       299,015       106,663       35.7 % 
Handicrafts      63,462       18,675       44,787       239.8 % 
Total    $ 1,084,191     $ 605,772     $ 478,419       79.0 % 

    Three Months Ended June 30,      Six Months Ended June 30,    

    2013      2012      
(Decrease) 
Increase      2013      2012      

(Decrease) 
Increase    

TCM raw materials      67.3 %     85.6 %     (18.3 )%     71.6 %     85.4 %     (13.8 )% 
Yew trees      94.4 %     82.4 %     12.0 %     75.5 %     79.5 %     (4.0 )% 
Handicrafts      (15.4 )%     57.8 %     (73.2 )%     25.5 %     48.2 %     (22.7 )% 
Total      76.0 %     84.4 %     (8.4 )%     72.2 %     82.5 %     (10.3 )% 

  
25 



   
               As more fully described in segment information below:  
 

 

 

 
Selling Expenses  
 

Selling expenses consisted of the following:  
 

 
For the three months ended June 30, 2013, selling expenses were $6,079 as compared to $5,350 for the three months ended June 30, 

2012, an increase of $729, or 13.6%. The increase in our selling expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2013 was primarily attributable to 
an increase in other miscellaneous selling expenses and salary and related benefits, partially offset by a decrease in shipping and handling 
expense.  
 

For the six months ended June 30, 2013, selling expenses were $11,693 as compared to $11,237 for the six months ended June 30, 
2012, an increase of $456, or 4.1%. The increase in our selling expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2013 was primarily attributable to an 
increase in salary and related benefit and shipping and handling expenses, partially offset by a decrease in other miscellaneous selling expenses.  
   

  

●       For the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, our gross margin percentages related to the sale of TCM raw materials 
decreased as compared to the comparable period in the prior year. The decrease in these gross margin percentages was 
primarily attributable to a decrease in that the average unit selling price for our TCM raw materials and an increase in the 
average unit cost of TCM raw materials, which contributed to the lower gross profit margin in the 2013 periods.  

●       The increase in our gross margin percentage related to the sale of yew trees and seedlings for the three months ended June 30, 
2013 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2012 is primarily attributable to the fact that the average unit selling 
price for our yew trees was higher and the average unit cost for our yew trees was lower, which contributed to the higher gross 
profit margin in the second quarter of fiscal 2013. The decrease in our gross margin percentage related to the sale of yew trees 
and seedlings for the six months ended June 30, 2013 as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2012 is primarily 
attributable to the fact that the average unit selling price for our yew trees was lower and the average unit cost for our yew 
trees was higher, which contributed to the lower gross profit margin in the first half of fiscal 2013  

●       The decrease in our gross margin percentage related to the sale of handicrafts for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 
was mainly due to the different sales revenue mix with different gross profit margins. During the three and six months ended 
June 30, 2013, we sold fewer lower-priced handicrafts with higher profit margin and sold more higher-priced handicrafts, 
which generally have lower profit margins compared to lower-priced handicrafts. Therefore, our gross margin percentage 
related to the sale of handicrafts for the 2013 periods decreased. Additionally, during the second quarter of fiscal 2013, we sold 
two handicraft products with revenue of $14,446 (36.7% of total handicraft revenue for the three months ended June 30, 
2013)) with a corresponding cost of revenue of $38,667 (85.1% of total handicraft costs of revenues for the three months 
ended June 30, 2013). Accordingly, during the three months ended June 30, 2013, we recognized a negative gross profit of 
$24,221 from the transaction. The two handicraft products sold at a negative were observed as having some breakage and 
cracks, and accordingly, management decided to sell these products at a selling price that was lower than cost.  

    Three Months Ended June 30,      Six Months Ended June 30,    
    2013      2012      2013      2012    
Salary and related benefit    $ 4,231     $ 3,960     $ 8,119     $ 7,702   
Shipping and handling      149       192       711       393   
Other      1,699       1,198       2,863       3,142   
Total    $ 6,079     $ 5,350     $ 11,693     $ 11,237   
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General and Administrative Expenses  
 

For the three months ended June 30, 2013, general and administrative expenses amounted to $271,908, as compared to $150,062 for the 
three months ended June 30, 2012, an increase of $121,846, or 81.2%. For the six months ended June 30, 2013, general and administrative 
expenses amounted to $543,869, as compared to $363,773 for the six months ended June 30, 2012, an increase of $180,096, or 49.5%. General 
and administrative expenses consisted of the following:  
 

 
The increase in our general and administrative expenses for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, as compared to the three and 

six months ended June 30, 2012, was primarily attributable to increases in compensation and related benefits, travel and entertainment expense, 
professional fees and other miscellaneous general and administrative expenses, offset by a decrease in depreciation expense.  
 

The changes in general and administrative expenses for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, as compared to the three and six 
months ended June 30, 2012, consisted of the following:  
 

 

 

 

   

  

    Three Months Ended June 30,      Six Months Ended June 30,    
    2013      2012      2013      2012    
Compensation and related benefits    $ 70,437     $ 64,683     $ 139,699     $ 140,005   
Depreciation      37,693       45,575       85,089       88,990   
Travel and entertainment      27,850       20,475       47,762       40,301   
Professional fees      89,426       11,550       172,681       45,254   
Other      46,502       7,779       98,638       49,223   
Total    $ 271,908     $ 150,062     $ 543,869     $ 363,773   

●  For the three months ended June 30, 2013, compensation and related benefits increased by $5,754, or 8.9%, as compared to the three 
months ended June 30, 2012, which was primarily attributable to an increase in salaries paid to our management and other 
administrative staff resulting from the increase in sales during the same period. For the six months ended June 30, 2013, compensation 
and related benefits decreased by $306, or 0.2%, as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2012.  

●  For the three months ended June 30, 2013, depreciation decreased by $7,882, or 17.3%, as compared to the three months ended June 30, 
2012. For the six months ended June 30, 2013, depreciation decreased by $3,901, or 4.4%, as compared to the six months ended June 
30, 2012. The decreases were primarily attributable to a decrease in depreciable assets.  

●  For the three months ended June 30, 2013, travel and entertainment increased by $7,375 or 36.0%, as compared to the three months 
ended June 30, 2012. For the six months ended June 30, 2013, travel and entertainment increased by $7,461 or 18.5%, as compared to 
the six months ended June 30, 2012. These increases for the periods shown were primarily related to an increase in travel to the United 
States in connection with meetings with the Company’s professional advisors.  

●  Professional fees consisted primarily of legal, accounting, investor relations fees and other fees associated with the cost of being a 
public company in the United States. For the three months ended June 30, 2013, professional fees increased by $77,876, or 674.3%, as 
compared to the three months ended June 30, 2012. The increase was primarily attributable to an increase in fees incurred and paid for 
investor relations service  and consulting fees of approximately $36,000, an increase in legal fees  of approximately $19,000, an 
increase in fees incurred and paid for the Company’s 2013 annual shareholders’ meeting (the “2013 Shareholders’ Meeting”) of 
approximately $7,000, an increase in fees incurred and paid for SEC filings  service of approximately $9,000 and an increase in other 
miscellaneous professional fees of approximately $7,000 in the second quarter of fiscal 2013. For the six months ended June 30, 2013, 
professional fees increased by $127,427, or 281.6%, as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2012. The increase was mainly 
attributable to an increase in fees for investor relations and consulting services of approximately $57,000, an increase in legal fees of 
approximately $28,000, an increase in fees incurred  the Company’s 2013 Shareholders’ Meeting of approximately $19,000, an increase 
in fees incurred  SEC filing fees  of approximately $14,000, an increase in fees incurred for DTC advisory service of approximately 
$12,000, offset by a decrease in other miscellaneous professional fees of approximately $3,000 in the first half of fiscal 2013.  
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Income from Operations  
 

For the three months ended June 30, 2013, income from operations was $1,322,857, as compared to income from operations of 
$1,452,265 for the three months ended June 30, 2012, a decrease of $129,408, or 8.9%. This decrease was primarily attributable to an increase in 
general and administrative expenses.  
 

For the six months ended June 30, 2013, income from operations was $2,265,553, as compared to income from operations of 
$2,478,984 for the six months ended June 30, 2012, a decrease of $213,431, or 8.6%. This decrease was primarily attributable to an increase in 
general and administrative expenses and a decrease in overall gross profit.  
 
Other Income (Expenses)  
 

For the three months ended June 30, 2013, total other expenses was $158, as compared to total other income of $1,148 for the three 
months ended June 30, 2012. For the six months ended June 30, 2013, total other expenses was $533, as compared to total other income of 
$1,227 for the six months ended June 30, 2012.  
 
Net Income  
 

As a result of the factors described above, our net income was $1,322,699 or $0.03 per share (basic and diluted), for the three months 
ended June 30, 2013, as compared to net income of $1,453,413, or $0.03 per share (basic and diluted), for the three months ended June 30, 2012. 
Our net income was $2,265,020 or $0.05 per share (basic and diluted), for the six months ended June 30, 2013, as compared to net income of 
$2,480,211, or $0.05 per share (basic and diluted), for the six months ended June 30, 2012.  
 
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment  
 

For the three months ended June 30, 2013, we reported an unrealized gain on foreign currency translation of $442,871, as compared to 
$21,762 for the three months ended June 30, 2012. For the six months ended June 30, 2013, we reported an unrealized gain on foreign currency 
translation of $597,523, as compared to $167,667 for the six months ended June 30, 2012. The change reflects the effect of the value of the U.S. 
dollar in relation to the RMB. These gains are non-cash items. As described elsewhere herein, the functional currency of our subsidiary, JSJ, and 
our VIE, HDS, is the RMB. The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been translated and presented in U.S. dollars using period 
end rates of exchange for assets and liabilities, and average rates of exchange for the period for net revenues, costs, and expenses. Net gains 
resulting from foreign exchange transactions, if any, are included in the consolidated statements of income.  
   

  

●  For the three months ended June 30, 2013, other miscellaneous general and administrative expense increased by $38,723, or 497.8%, as 
compared to the three months ended June 30, 2012. The increase was primarily due to an increase in vehicle expenses of approximately 
$17,000, an increase in office expense of approximately $3,000, an increase in research and development expense of approximately 
$4,000, an increase in rent expense of approximately $3,000, an increase in miscellaneous taxes of approximately $4,000 and an 
increase in other miscellaneous items of approximately $7,000. For the six months ended June 30, 2013, other miscellaneous general 
and administrative expense increased by $49,415, or 100.4%, as compared to the six months ended June 30, 2012. The increase was 
primarily due to an increase in vehicle expenses of approximately $26,000, an increase in miscellaneous taxes of approximately 
$11,000, an increase in office expense of approximately $5,000, an increase in research and development expense of approximately 
$4,000 and an increase in other miscellaneous items of approximately $3,000.  
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Comprehensive Income  
 

For the three months ended June 30, 2013, comprehensive income of $1,765,570 was derived from the sum of our net income of 
$1,322,699 plus a foreign currency translation gain of $442,871. For the three months ended June 30, 2012, comprehensive income of 
$1,475,175 was derived from the sum of our net income of $1,453,413 plus a foreign currency translation gain of $21,762.  
 

For the six months ended June 30, 2013, comprehensive income of $2,862,543 was derived from the sum of our net income of 
$2,265,020 plus a foreign currency translation gain of $597,523. For the six months ended June 30, 2012, comprehensive income of $2,647,878 
was derived from the sum of our net income of $2,480,211 plus a foreign currency translation gain of $167,667.  
 
Segment Information  
 

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, we operated in three reportable business segments: (1) the TCM raw 
materials segment, consisting of the production and sale of yew raw materials used in the manufacture of TCM; (2) the yew tree segment, 
consisting of the growth and sale of yew tree seedlings and mature trees, including potted miniature yew trees; and (3) the handicrafts segment, 
consisting of the manufacture and sale of furniture and handicrafts made of yew timber. Our reportable segments are strategic business units that 
offer different products. They are managed separately based on the fundamental differences in their operations. All of our operations are 
conducted in the PRC.  
 

Information with respect to these reportable business segments for the three months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was as follows:  
 

   

  

    For the three months ended June 30, 2013      For the three months ended June 30, 2012    

    
Revenues-  
third party      

Revenues –  
related party      Total      

Revenues-  
third party      

Revenues –  
related party      Total    

Revenues:                                      
TCM raw materials    $ 307,844     $ 962,486     $ 1,270,330     $ 1,225,360     $ -    $ 1,225,360   
Yew trees      796,653       -      796,653       673,565       -      676,565   
Handicrafts      39,383       -      39,383       6,496       -      6,496   
Total revenues    $ 1,143,880     $ 962,486     $ 2,106,366     $ 1,905,421     $ -    $ 1,905,421   
                                                  
Cost of sales:                                                  
TCM raw materials    $ 115,879     $ 299,212     $ 415,091     $ 176,781     $ -    $ 176,781   
Yew trees      44,991       -      44,991       118,220       -      118,220   
Handicrafts      45,440       -      45,440       2,743       -      2,743   
Total cost of revenues    $ 206,310     $ 299,212     $ 505,522     $ 297,744     $ -    $ 297,744   
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Information with respect to these reportable business segments for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was as follows:  

 

 
TCM raw materials  
 

In February 2010, we began selling yew branches and leaves that are used in the production of TCM. On January 9, 2010, we entered 
into the Development Agreement with Yew Pharmaceutical, a related party, for the development, production and sale of yew-based TCM. 
Pursuant to the Development Agreement, we sell yew branches and leaves to Yew Pharmaceutical. Yew Pharmaceutical manufactures TCM at 
its own facilities in Harbin in accordance with the requirements of the Heilongjiang Food and Drug Administration (the “HFDA”). Yew 
Pharmaceutical is also responsible for producing the finished product in accordance with GMP requirements. In this regard, Yew Pharmaceutical 
received a GMP certificate in November 2009, and has filed all applications with, and obtained all approvals from, the HFDA. Using our TCM 
raw materials, Yew Pharmaceutical manufactures Zi Shan, a TCM secondary cancer treatment drug. Zi Shan is a CFDA approved TCM 
secondary cancer treatment drug, is also recognized for the treatment of liver diseases, menstrual disorders, and other ailments and is available 
over the counter (OTC) and with a prescription. Zi Shan is marketed and sold exclusively through Yew Pharmaceutical, under the Development 
Agreement. Yew Pharmaceutical is a major purchaser of our yew raw materials used in the production of TCM and is owned directly and 
indirectly primarily by Mr. Wang and Madame Qi. For the three months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, we had revenue of $962,486 and $0, 
respectively, from the sale of TCM raw materials to Yew Pharmaceutical and for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, we had revenue 
of $1,320,435 and $158,089, respectively, from the sale of TCM raw materials to Yew Pharmaceutical, pursuant to the Development Agreement. 
 

TCM that is produced by manufacturers who buy yew raw material from us is marketed and sold by them to third party users, including 
hospitals. For the three months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, revenue from the sale of TCM raw materials to third parties amounted to 
$307,844 and $1,225,360, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, revenue from the sale of TCM raw materials to third 
parties amounted to $846,056 and $1,808,554, respectively.  
 

Such purchases are cyclical in nature. When our customers, who themselves are manufacturers, require raw materials to increase 
production, our sales of yew raw materials increase. When those customers have sufficient raw materials on hand or their own end-user 
customers have sufficient inventory of finished TCM product on hand, our sales of yew raw materials decrease.  
   

  

    For the six months ended June 30, 2013      For the six months ended June 30, 2012    

    
Revenues-  
third party      

Revenues –  
related party      Total      

Revenues-  
third party      

Revenues –  
related party      Total    

Revenues:                                      
TCM raw materials    $ 846,056     $ 1,320,435     $ 2,166,491     $ 1,808,554     $ 158,089     $ 1,966,643   
Yew trees      1,653,607       -      1,653,607       1,457,088       -      1,457,088   
Handicrafts      85,208       -      85,208       34,432       1,603       6,496   
Total revenues    $ 2,584,871     $ 1,320,435     $ 3,905,306     $ 3,300,074     $ 159,692     $ 3,459,766   
                                                  
Cost of sales:                                                  
TCM raw materials    $ 232,829     $ 382,222     $ 615,051     $ 263,723     $ 24,359     $ 288,082   
Yew trees      405,678       -      405,678       299,015       -      299,015   
Handicrafts      63,462       -      63,462       17,810       865       18,675   
Total cost of revenues    $ 701,969     $ 382,222     $ 1,084,191     $ 580,548     $ 25,224     $ 605,772   
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Revenue generated from Yew Pharmaceutical increased during the three- and six-month periods ended June 30, 2013 because Yew 

Pharmaceutical needed to replenish its inventory of yew raw materials in connection with its manufacture of Zi Shan. The sale of TCM raw 
materials to third party customers decreased as our customers indicated to us that they had sufficient inventory from purchases of yew raw 
materials in prior periods.  
 

Yew Pharmaceutical is our single largest customer of yew raw materials. For the three months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, revenue 
from sales of yew raw materials to Yew Pharmaceutical amounted to $962,486, or 75.8%, of yew raw materials revenue and $-0-, or -0-%, of 
yew raw materials revenue, respectively.  For the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, revenue from sales of yew raw materials to Yew 
Pharmaceutical amounted to $1,320,435, or 60.9%, of yew raw materials revenue and $158,089, or 8.0%, of yew raw materials revenue, 
respectively.  We expect that, as a percentage of revenue, sales of TCM raw materials will increase to third party customers and decrease to Yew 
Pharmaceutical during the remainder of 2013.  
 

Revenue from TCM raw materials and the allocation of sales between related and third parties may fluctuate from period to period 
depending upon the then current needs of our third-party customers and Yew Pharmaceutical. Because yew raw materials is our largest business 
segment, any fluctuation in revenue from TCM raw materials may have a significant impact on in net income in such periods. Currently, we are 
largely dependent on Yew Pharmaceutical and a small number of larger, third party customers of TCM raw materials, although we are 
attempting to expand our sales and marketing efforts to new customers as well. We do not expect sales of TCM raw materials to Yew 
Pharmaceutical to recommence until the fourth quarter of 2013, because of the cyclical nature of Yew Pharmaceutical’s purchase requirements.  
 

We currently have significant accounts receivable from Yew Pharmaceutical and certain of our third party customers of TCM raw 
materials. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” below.  
 

During the three months ended June 30, 2013, we sold 7,880 kg of TCM raw materials as compared to 7,050 kg of TCM raw materials 
during the three months ended June 30, 2012, an 11.8% increase in sales volume due primarily to increased sales to Yew Pharmaceutical, with a 
7.2% decrease in our average unit selling price. During the six months ended June 30, 2013, we sold 13,207 kg of TCM raw materials as 
compared to 11,400 kg of TCM raw materials during the six months ended June 30, 2012, a 15.9% increase in sales volume due primarily to 
increased sales to Yew Pharmaceutical, with a 4.9% decrease in our average unit selling price.  
 

Sales volume was summarized as follows:  
 

 
The decrease in our average unit selling price was attributable to a decrease in the percentage of total TCM raw materials sales made to 

third party customers offset by an increase in the percentage of the total TCM sold to Yew Pharmaceutical. We sold TCM raw materials to Yew 
Pharmaceutical, a related party, at a fixed price of RMB 1,000,000 (approximately $160,000) per metric ton pursuant to the Development 
Agreement, and we sold TCM raw materials to other customers at a price of approximately RMB 1,100,000 (approximately $176,000) per 
metric ton.  
                            

The increase in our cost of revenues in the TCM raw materials segment for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, as compared 
to the three and six months ended June 30, 2012, was attributable to the increase in our revenues in the TCM raw materials segment as well a 
higher average unit cost for our TCM raw material due to the increased amortization from long-term yew forest assets and land use rights 
resulting from the decreased production level during the 2013 season.  
   

  

    Three Months Ended June 30,      Six Months Ended June 30,    
    2013      2012      2013      2012    
Sales volume - third parties (kg)      1,880       7,050       4,957       10,400   
Sales volume - related party (kg)      6,000       -      8,250       1,000   
Total sales volume      7,880       7,050       13,207       11,400   
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Due to the factors discussed above, we had a decrease in our gross profit margin for the TCM raw materials segment for the three and 

six months ended June 30, 2013, as compared to the three and six months ended June 30, 2012.  
 
Yew trees  
 

During the three months ended June 30, 2013, we sold approximately 38,000 pieces of yew seedlings and trees as compared to 
approximately 88,000 pieces of yew seedlings and trees in the three months ended June 30, 2012, a decrease in volume of 57.4%. However, we 
saw an increase in the average unit selling price of yew seedlings and trees of 177.7% for the three months ended June 30, 2013 as compared to 
the three months ended June 30, 2012. The increase in our average unit selling price for yew seedlings and trees was primarily attributable to a 
different sales revenue mix with varying unit selling prices. The selling price of yew trees is dependent on the age, size, shape and variety of the 
seedling or tree. For example, generally speaking, smaller, less developed yew trees sell for less than more mature seedlings or trees. We sold 
more mature and larger yew trees as a percentage of total yew trees sales during the three months ended June 30, 2013 as compared to the three 
months ended June 30, 2012; therefore, the average unit selling price of yew trees increased in the three months ended June 30, 2013. The 
increase in our gross margin percentage related to the sale of yew trees for the three months ended June 30, 2013, as compared to the three 
months ended June 30, 2012, was because we sold more mature yew trees in the three months ended June 30, 2013 and we had higher profit 
margin on those more mature yew trees. As a result, we saw a higher gross margin in our yew trees segment for the three months ended June 30, 
2013.  
 

During the six months ended June 30, 2013, we sold approximately 218,000 pieces of yew seedlings and trees, as compared to 
approximately 185,000 pieces of yew seedlings and trees in the six months ended June 30, 2012, an increase in volume of 17.8%. We saw a 
decrease in the average unit selling price of yew seedlings and trees of 3.7% for the six months ended June 30, 2013 as compared to the six 
months ended June 30, 2012. The decrease in our average unit selling price for yew seedlings and trees was primarily attributable to a different 
sales revenue mix with varying unit selling prices. The selling price of yew trees is dependent on the age, size, shape and variety of the seedling 
or tree. For example, generally speaking, smaller, less developed yew trees sell for less than more mature seedlings or trees. We sold fewer 
mature and larger yew trees as a percentage of total yew trees sales during the six months ended June 30, 2013 as compared to the six months 
ended June 30, 2012; therefore, the average unit selling price of yew trees decreased in the six months ended June 30, 2013. The decrease in our 
gross margin percentage related to the sale of yew trees for the six months ended June 30, 2013, as compared to the six months ended June 30, 
2012, was because we sold fewer mature yew trees in the six months ended June 30, 2013 and we had higher profit margin on those more mature 
yew trees. As a result, we saw a lower gross margin in our yew trees segment for the six months ended June 30, 2013.  
 

The decrease in our cost of revenues in the yew trees segment for the three months ended June 30, 2013, as compared to the three 
months ended June 30, 2012, was attributable to the decreased cost of cultivating yew trees in the three months ended June 30, 2013. We sold 
approximately 38,000 pieces of yew seedlings and trees in the three months ended June 30, 2013, as compared to approximately 88,000 pieces of 
yew seedlings and trees in the three months ended June 30, 2012. The average cost per yew tree was approximately $1.19 for the three months 
ended June 30, 2013, as compared to $1.34 per yew tree for the three months ended June 30, 2012.  
 

The increase in our cost of revenues in the yew trees segment for the six months ended June 30, 2013, as compared to the six months 
ended June 30, 2012, was attributable to the increased cost of cultivating yew trees in the six months ended June 30, 2013. We sold 
approximately 218,000 pieces of yew seedlings and trees in the six months ended June 30, 2013, as compared to approximately 185,000 pieces 
of yew seedlings and trees in the six months ended June 30, 2012. The average cost per yew tree was approximately $1.86 for the six months 
ended June 30, 2013, as compared to $1.62 per yew tree for the six months ended June 30, 2012.  
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In connection with our entering into a land use agreement in July 2012 we acquired more than 80,000 trees which are not yew trees –

located on that property. These trees consist of approximately 20,000 larix, 56,700 spruce and 3,700 poplar trees. Larix trees are used primarily 
in landscaping and we currently anticipate that we will begin selling larix trees to customers during the next twelve months. Spruce and poplar 
trees are used primarily as building materials and we currently anticipate that we will begin selling these trees to customers in later periods, when 
these trees reach maturity in several years.  
 
Handicrafts  
 

During the three months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, revenue from the sale of handicrafts made from yew timber amounted to 
$39,383 and $6,496, respectively, an increase of $32,887 or 506.3%. During the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, revenue from the 
sale of handicrafts made from yew timber amounted to $85,208 and $36,035, including sales to a related party of $0 and $1,603, respectively, an 
increase of $49,173 or 136.5%.  
 

The decrease in our gross margin percentage related to the sale of handicrafts for the three and six months ended June 30, 2013 was 
mainly due to a different sales revenue mix with different gross profit margins. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2013, we sold 
fewer lower-priced handicrafts with higher profit margin and sold more higher-priced handicrafts, which generally have lower profit margins 
compared to lower-priced handicrafts. Therefore, our gross margin percentage related to the sale of handicrafts for the 2013 periods decreased. 
Additionally, during the second quarter of fiscal 2013, we sold two handicraft products with revenue of $14,446 (36.7% of total handicraft 
revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2013) with a corresponding cost of revenue of $38,667 (85.1% of total handicraft costs of revenues 
for the three months ended June 30, 2013). Accordingly, during the three months ended June 30, 2013, we recognized a negative gross profit of 
$24,221 from the transaction. The two handicraft products sold at a negative were observed as having some breakage and cracks, and 
accordingly, management decided to sell these products at a selling price that was lower than cost.  
 

In August 2012, we began to more actively market our handicraft products. Specific steps taken to market our handicraft products 
include:  
 

 

 

 
Starting in January 2013, we also began selling some of our more moderately-priced handicrafts on a television shopping program that 

is broadcast in Heilongjiang Province, of which Harbin is the capital.  
 

We are continuing to evaluate the effectiveness and design of our selling efforts in the handicrafts segment, including the right sales 
volume quotas to establish with our distributors, in light of continued slower than desired sales of handicrafts.  
   

  

●  We began to engage first tier distributors to distribute our handicraft products in provincial capital cities in 10 provinces; each first tier 
distributor is required to reach minimal annual sales volume of 2,000,000 RMB. First tier distributors will be able to purchase 
handicrafts from us at a price below the price that basic distributors pay for the handicraft products. In addition to the discounted first 
tier distributor pricing provided, we will also provide approximately 3%-5% commission (payable in yew seedling products) to these 
first tier distributors.  

●  We engaged second tier distributors in smaller cities. Each second tier distributor is required to reach minimal annual sales volume of 
1,000,000 RMB. These distributors will also be offered beneficial pricing off the price that basic distributors pay. We will also provide 
approximately 2%-3% commission (payable in yew seedling products) to the second tier distributors.  

●  We have instructed our sales representatives to make frequent visits to our distributors to promote our handicraft products.  
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Liquidity and Capital Resources  
 

Liquidity is the ability of a company to generate funds to support its current and future operations, satisfy its obligations and otherwise 
operate on an ongoing basis. At June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, we had cash balances of $30,021 and $386,821, respectively. These 
funds are primarily located in various financial institutions located in China. Our primary uses of cash have been for the purchase of yew trees, 
land use rights and yew forest assets. Additionally, we use cash for employee compensation and working capital.  
 

We intend to meet our liquidity requirements through cash flow provided by operations, including new sales and collection of 
outstanding accounts receivables from various customers. At June 30, 2013, we had accounts receivable of $3,253,773, as compared to accounts 
receivable of $1,007,584 at December 31, 2012, an increase of $2,246,189. Of the total receivable, $1,486,700 was from Yew Pharmaceutical, a 
related party at June 30, 2013, as compared to $284,986 at December 31, 2012, an increase of $1,201,714. The receivable from Yew 
Pharmaceutical was our single largest receivable at June 30, 2013.  
   

We believe that our relationship with these customers is good and that our accounts receivable are fully collectible. The nature of our 
relationship with some of our TCM raw materials customers, a number of which are of long duration, is that they themselves have long 
collection cycles for the TCM they sell to their customers, including hospitals. Accordingly, our customers may experience periodic liquidity 
issues in the normal operation of their businesses. From time to time, those liquidity issues make it more difficult for our customers to pay us and 
our accounts receivable increase.  
 

We have set up a collection plan with Yew Pharmaceutical and our third party customers with whom we have significant accounts 
receivable as follows. They will be required to pay down a significant portion of the receivable we have from them during the third quarter and 
the balance by the end of the year. Additionally, future sales of TCM raw materials to them will depend upon their ability to fulfill their 
obligations under the payment plan and they may be required to pay for new purchases on a cash-and-carry basis, at least temporarily.  
 

We believe that we will have sufficient cash flow from operations to satisfy our working capital needs and to fund our operations for at 
least the next 12 months. However, any significant delay in the collection of the outstanding accounts receivable could have an adverse effect on 
our ability to fund our working capital requirements.    
 

The following table sets forth information as to the principal changes in the components of our working capital from December 31, 
2012 to June 30, 2013:  
 

   
Our working capital increased $2,165,883 to $4,358,231 at June 30, 2013, from working capital of $2,192,348 at December 31, 2012. 

This increase in working capital is primarily attributable to:  
 

   

  

    June 30,     December 31,     
December 31, 2012 to June 30, 

2013    

Category    2013      2012      Change      
Percentage 

change    
Current assets:                          
Cash    $ 30,021     $ 386,821     $ (356,800 )     (92.2 )% 
Accounts receivable      1,767,073       722,598       1,044,475       144.5 % 
Accounts receivable – related party      1,486,700       284,986       1,201,714       421.7 % 
Inventories      1,247,219       991,234       255,985       25.8 % 
Prepaid expenses and other assets      24,465       150       24,315       *   
Prepaid expenses – related parties      47,556       60,245       (12,689 )     (21.1 )% 
Current liabilities:                                  
Accounts payable      3,996       990       3,006       303.6 % 
Accrued expenses and other payables      187,423       199,098       (11,675 )     (5.9 )% 
Taxes payable      2,997       5,722       (2,725 )     (47.6 )% 
Due to related parties      50,387       47,876       2,511       5.2 % 
Working capital:                                  
Total current assets    $ 4,603,034     $ 2,446,034     $ 2,157,000       88.2 % 
Total current liabilities      244,803       253,686       (8,883 )     (3.5 )% 
Working capital    $ 4,358,231     $ 2,192,348     $ 2,165,883       98.8 % 

∗   not meaningful 

●  an increase in accounts receivable of approximately $1,044,000;  
●  an increase in accounts receivable–related party of approximately $1,202,000 due to the increase in sales revenue from related party; 

and  
●  an increase in inventories of approximately $256,000;  
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partially offset by:  
 

 
For the six months ended June 30, 2013, net cash flow provided by operating activities was $134,962, as compared to net cash flow 

provided by operating activities of $1,235,148 for the six months ended June 30, 2012, a decrease of $1,100,186. Because the exchange rate 
conversion is different for the balance sheet and the statements of cash flows, the changes in assets and liabilities reflected on the statements of 
cash flows are not necessarily identical with the comparable changes reflected on the balance sheets.  
 

For the six months ended June 30, 2013, net cash flow provided by operating activities of $134,962 was primarily attributable to:  
 

 
partially offset by:  
 

 
For the six months ended June 30, 2012, net cash flow provided by operating activities of $1,235,148 was primarily attributable to:  

 

 

 
partially offset by:  
 

   
Net cash flow used in investing activities was approximately $497,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2013. During the six months 

ended June 30, 2013, we spent approximately $3,000 on purchase of property and equipment and made payments for yew forest assets of 
approximately $494,000. Net cash flow used in investing activities was approximately $1,042,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2012. 
During the six months ended June 30, 2012, we spent approximately $46,000 on purchase of property and equipment and spent approximately 
$996,000 on the payment of a deposit on a land use right acquisition.  
 

During the six months ended June 30, 2013, we did not have any financing activity. Net cash flow used in financing activities was 
approximately $237,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and consisted of repayments to a related party.  
   

  

●  a decrease in cash of approximately $357,000.  

●  net income of approximately $2,265,000 adjusted for the add-back of non-cash items, such as depreciation of approximately $103,000 and 
amortization of land use rights and yew forest assets of approximately $179,000, and  
   

●  the receipt of cash from operations from changes in operating assets and liabilities, such as: a decrease in prepaid expenses–related parties 
of approximately $14,000;  

●  the use of cash from changes in operating assets and liabilities, such as an increase in accounts receivable of approximately $1,020,000, 
and an increase in accounts receivable–related party of approximately $1,184,000, and an increase in inventories of approximately 
$186,000.  

●  net income of approximately $2,480,000 adjusted for the add-back of non-cash items, such as: depreciation of approximately $103,000, 
and amortization of land use rights and yew forest assets of approximately $172,000, and  

●  the receipt of cash from operations from changes in operating assets and liabilities, such an increase in advance from customers of 
approximately $232,000,  

●  the use of cash from changes in operating assets and liabilities, such as: an increase in accounts receivable of approximately $316,000, a 
decrease in accounts payable of approximately $1,307,000 and an increase in prepaid rent – related party of approximately $71,000.  
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We have historically financed our operations and capital expenditures through cash flows from operations, bank loans and advances 

from related parties. From March 2008 to September 2009, we received approximately $2.9 million of proceeds in the aggregate from a series of 
offerings and sales of our common stock. Except for the portion used to pay for professional and other expenses in the United States, substantial 
portions of the proceeds we received through sales of our common stock were retained in the PRC and used to fund our working capital 
requirements. As the PRC government imposes controls on PRC companies’ ability to convert RMB into foreign currencies and the remittance 
of currency out of China, from time to time, in order to fund our corporate activities in the United States, Zhiguo Wang, our President and CEO, 
advanced funds to us in the United States and we repaid the amounts owed to him in RMB in the PRC.  
 

It is management’s intention to expand our operations as quickly as reasonably practicable to capitalize on the demand opportunity for 
our products. We regularly review our cash funding requirements and attempt to meet those requirements through a combination of cash on 
hand, cash provided by operations and any potential available bank borrowings. We believe that we can continue meeting our cash funding 
requirements for our business in this manner over at least the next twelve months. The majority of our funds are maintained in RMB in bank 
accounts in China. We receive all of our revenue in the PRC. Under existing PRC foreign exchange regulations, payments of current account 
items, including profit distributions, interest payments and expenditures from trade related transactions, can be made in foreign currencies by 
complying with certain procedural requirements. However, approval from China’s State Administration of Foreign Exchange (“SAFE”) or its 
local counterparts is required where RMB is to be converted into foreign currency and remitted out of China to pay capital expenses such as the 
repayment of loans denominated in foreign currencies. The PRC government may also, at its discretion, restrict access to foreign currencies for 
current account transactions. As of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, approximately $28.8 million and $25.7 million, respectively, of our 
net assets are located in the PRC. If the foreign exchange control system in the PRC prevents us from obtaining sufficient foreign curren c y to 
satisfy our currency demands, we may not be able to transfer funds deposited within the PRC to fund working capital requirements in the U.S. or 
pay any dividends in currencies other than the RMB, to our shareholders.  
 
Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements  

 
We have certain potential commitments that include future estimated payments. Changes in our business needs, cancellation provisions, 

changing interest rates and other factors may result in actual payments differing from the estimates. We cannot provide certainty regarding the 
timing and amounts of payments. We have presented below a summary of the most significant assumptions used in our determination of 
amounts presented in the tables, in order to assist in the review of this information within the context of our consolidated financial position, 
results of operations and cash flows.  

 
The following tables summarize our contractual obligations as of June 30, 2013, and the effect these obligations are expected to have on 

our liquidity and cash flows in future periods:  
 

   

  

Contractual obligations:    Total      1 year      1-3 years      3-5 years      5+ years    
Operating leases    $ 604,775     $ 6,498     $ 137,445     $ 24,808     $ 436,024   
Total    $ 604,775     $ 6,498     $ 137,445     $ 24,808     $ 436,024   
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements  
 

We have not entered into any financial guarantees or other commitments to guarantee the payment obligations of any third parties. We 
have not entered into any derivative contracts that are indexed to our shares and classified as shareholder’s equity or that are not reflected in our 
consolidated financial statements. Furthermore, we do not have any retained or contingent interest in assets transferred to an unconsolidated 
entity that serves as credit, liquidity or market risk support to such entity. We do not have any variable interest in any unconsolidated entity that 
provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit support to us or engages in leasing, hedging or research and development services with us.  
   
Recently Enacted JOBS Act  
 

We qualify as an “emerging growth company” under the recently enacted Jumpstart Our Business Start-Ups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS 
Act”). As a result, we are permitted to, and intend to, rely on exemptions from certain disclosure requirements. For so long as we are an 
emerging growth company, among other things, we will not be required to:  
 

 
In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act also provides that an emerging growth company can take advantage of the extended transition 

period provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act for complying with new or revised accounting standards. In other words, an emerging 
growth company can delay the adoption of certain accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies. We 
have elected to take advantage of the benefits of this extended transition period. Our financial statements may therefore not be comparable to 
those of companies that comply with such new or revised accounting standards.  
 

We will remain an “emerging growth company” for up to five years, or until the earliest of (i) the last day of the first fiscal year in 
which our total annual gross revenues exceed $1 billion; (ii) the date that we become a “large accelerated filer” as defined in Rule 12b-2 under 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which would occur if the market value of our ordinary shares that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 
million as of the last business day of our most recently completed second fiscal quarter or (iii) the date on which we have issued more than $1 
billion in non-convertible debt during the preceding three-year period.  
 

Until such time, however, because the JOBS Act has only recently been enacted, we cannot predict whether investors will find our 
stock less attractive because of the more limited disclosure requirements that we may be entitled to follow and other exemptions on which we are 
relying while we are an “emerging growth company”. If some investors find our common stock less attractive as a result, there may be a less 
active trading market for our common stock and our stock price may be more volatile.  
   

  

●  have an auditor report on our internal controls over financial reporting pursuant to Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act;  
●  submit certain executive compensation matters to shareholder advisory votes, such as “say-on-pay”  and “say-on-frequency” ;  
●  obtain shareholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously approved; and  
●  disclose certain executive compensation related items such as the correlation between executive compensation and performance and 

comparisons of the Chief Executive’s compensation to median employee compensation.  
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Foreign Currency Exchange Rates Risk  
 

Substantially all of our operating revenues and expenses are denominated in RMB. We operate using RMB and the effects of foreign 
currency fluctuations are largely mitigated because local expenses in the PRC are also denominated in the same currency. We do not believe that 
we currently have any significant direct foreign exchange risk and have not hedged exposures denominated in foreign currencies or any other 
derivative financial instruments. Because we generally receive cash flows denominated in RMB, our exposure to foreign exchange risks should 
be limited.  
 

Our assets and liabilities, of which the functional currency is the RMB, are translated into USD using the exchange rates in effect at the 
balance sheet date, resulting in translation adjustments that are reflected as cumulative translation adjustment in the shareholders’ equity section 
on our consolidated balance sheets. A portion of our net assets are impacted by changes in foreign currencies translation rates in relation to the 
U.S. dollar. We recorded a foreign currency translation gain of $597,523 and $167,667 for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively, to reflect the impact of the fluctuation of the RMB against the U.S. dollar.  
 

The value of the RMB against the U.S. dollar and other currencies may fluctuate and is affected by, among other things, changes in 
China’s political and economic conditions. The conversion of the RMB into foreign currencies, including U.S. dollars, has been based on rates 
set by the People’s Bank of China.  
 

To the extent that we decide to convert RMB denominated cash amounts into U.S. dollars for the purpose of making any dividend 
payments, which we have not declared but may declare in the future, or for other business purposes, appreciation of the U.S. dollar against the 
RMB would have a negative effect on the U.S. dollar amount available to us. Conversely, if we need to convert U.S. dollars into RMB for 
operations, appreciation of the RMB against the U.S. dollar would have an adverse effect on the RMB amount it received from the conversion. 
We have not used, and do not currently expect to use in the future, any forward contracts or currency borrowings to hedge exposure to foreign 
currency exchange risk.  
 
Interest Rate Risk  
 

We have not been, nor do we currently anticipate being, exposed to material risks due to changes in interest rates because we do not 
have any consolidated debt.  
 

 
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.  
   

The Company’s management has evaluated, with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial 
Officer, the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and 
the Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of the end of the period 
covered by this report.  
 
(b) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting.  
 

There have not been any changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Company’s fiscal 
quarter ended June 30, 2013 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over 
financial reporting.  

  

  

ITEM 3.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK ET RISK  

ITEM 4.  CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES  
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PART II.  

 
OTHER INFORMATION  

 

 
We are not currently a party to any lawsuit or proceeding which, in the opinion of management, is likely to have a material adverse 

effect on us or our business.  
 

 
No material change.  

 

 
None.  

 

 
None.  

 

 
Not applicable.  

 

 
Effective May 28, 2013, the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) approved the Company's common stock for quotation on 

the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board under the symbol “YEWB”.  
 

Shares of the Company’s common stock received electronic eligibility status from The Depository Trust Corporation (“DTC”), 
effective as of July 12, 2013. As a result, the Company’s stock can be electronically cleared and settled by brokers through the facilities of DTC.  
 

 
The following exhibits are attached hereto and filed herewith:  

 

 
*Filed herewith.  
 
** Furnished herewith. XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language) information is furnished and not filed or a part of a registration 
statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, is deemed not filed for purposes of Section 
18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise is not subject to liability under these sections.  
   

  

ITEM 1.       LEGAL PROCEEDINGS  

ITEM 1A.   RISK FACTORS  

ITEM 2.     UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES  AND USE OF PROCEEDS  

ITEM 3.     DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES  

ITEM 4.    MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES  

ITEM 5.       OTHER INFORMATION  

ITEM 6.       EXHIBITS  

31.1*    Certification by the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and Rules 13a-14 and 15d-
14 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  

      
31.2*    Certification by the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and Rules 13a-14 and 15d-

14 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  
      
32*    Certification of Periodic Financial Report by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the 

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.  
      
101.INS**    XBRL Instance Document  
      
101.SCH**   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document  
      
101.CAL**   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document  
      
101.DEF**   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document  
      
101.LAB**   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document  
      
101.PRE**   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document  
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SIGNATURE  

   
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf 

by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.  
 

 
Date: August 14, 2013  
   

  

  YEW BIO -PHARM GROUP, INC.  
    
  By:  /s/ ADAM WASSERMAN  
    Adam Wasserman  
    Chief Financial Officer  
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EXHIBIT INDEX  

   

 
*Filed herewith.  
 
** Furnished herewith. XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language) information is furnished and not filed or a part of a registration 
statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, is deemed not filed for purposes of Section 
18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise is not subject to liability under these sections.  
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Exhibit  
Number    Description of Exhibit  
31.1*  

  
Certification by the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and Rules 13a-14 and 15d-
14 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  

    
31.2*  

  
Certification by the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and Rules 13a-14 and 15d-
14 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  

    
32*  

  
Certification of Periodic Financial Report by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.  

      
101.INS**    XBRL Instance Document  
      
101.SCH**   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document  
      
101.CAL**   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document  
      
101.DEF**   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document  
      
101.LAB**   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document  
      
101.PRE**   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document  



EXHIBIT 31.1 
 

Certification of Chief Executive Officer  
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002  

and Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934  
 
I, Zhiguo Wang, certify that:  
 

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Yew Bio-Pharm Group, Inc.;  
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report;  
 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;  
 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:  
 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others 
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  
 

(b) Designed such internal control over financing reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under 
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  
 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and  
 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely 
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and  
 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions):  
 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  
 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 
internal control over financial reporting.  
 

 

Date: August 14, 2013  /s/ ZHIGUO WANG  

  
Zhiguo Wang  
Chief Executive Officer  



EXHIBIT 31.2 
 

Certification of Chief Financial Officer  
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002  

and Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934  
 
I, Adam Wasserman, certify that:  
 

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Yew Bio-Pharm Group, Inc.;  
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report;  
 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;  
 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:  
 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others 
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  
 

(b) Designed such internal control over financing reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under 
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  
 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and  
 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely 
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and  
 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions):  
 

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  
 

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 
internal control over financial reporting.  
 
Date: August 14, 2013  /s/ ADAM WASSERMAN  

  
Adam Wasserman  
Chief Financial Officer  



EXHIBIT 32 
 

Certification of Periodic Financial Report by the Chief Executive Officer and  
Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002  

 
Solely for the purposes of complying with 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, we, 

the undersigned Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Yew Bio-Pharm Group, Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certify, based on 
our knowledge, that the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the quarter ended June 30, 2013 (the “Report”) fully complies with 
the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in the Report fairly 
presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.  
 

 

Date: August 14, 2013  /s/ ZHIGUO WANG  

  Zhiguo Wang  
Chief Executive Officer  

Date: August 14, 2013  /s/ ADAM WASSERMAN  

  Adam Wasserman  
Chief Financial Officer  


